
 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF PICTURE BUTTE TOWN COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
Monday, 27th January, 2025 at 6:30 pm 

 
1.0  CALL TO ORDER 

 
2.0  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
3.0  ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 

 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting Minutes – 13th January, 2025 

 
4.0 PUBLIC HEARING  

 
 
5.0 DELEGATION 
 
            
6.0 REQUESTS FOR DECISION 
 

6.1 Bylaw No. 953-25 Tax Exemptions bylaw 
6.2 AB Munis 2025 Spring Municipal Leaders Caucus 
6.3 Bylaw No. 954-25 Ad Hoc Centennial Celebration Committee  
6.4 February Committee of the Whole Meeting 
6.5  

 
7.0 MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
8.0 COUNCIL’S REPORT 
 
9.0 ADMINISTRATION’S REPORT 
 

9.1 CAO Report 
9.1.1 2024 Emergency Services Annual Report 

 
10.0 CORRESPONDENCE 

 
10.1 Health Professional Attraction and Retention Committee Meeting Minutes – 

7th October, 2024 
10.2 Health Professional Attraction and Retention Committee Meeting Minutes – 

2nd December, 2024 
10.3 Leslie Martin – Bee Hive Child Care Center Tour Invitation 



10.4 Natural Resources Conservation Board – Vanden Dool Farms – Manure 
Storage Application Notification 

 
11.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
11.1 Oldman River Regional Services Commission – Executive Meeting Minutes – 

14 November, 2024 
11.2  

 
12.0 CLOSED SESSION  

 
12.1 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 21 – Funding for Piyami Lodge 
12.2  

 
13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Regular Council Meeting 
January 13th, 2024                        1               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

MINUTES 
OF THE 

PICTURE BUTTE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
HELD IN 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
Monday, January 13th, 2025 AT 6:30 PM 

 
PRESENT: Mayor C. Moore          Deputy Mayor C. Papworth             Councillor T. Feist       
 Councillor H. de Kok   Councillor C. Neels  
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Chief Administrative Officer – K Davis 

Director of Corporate Services – M. Overbeeke 
  Director of Parks and Recreation – C. Van Dorp 
 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Moore called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

 
2.0 ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

001 2501 13  MOVED by Councillor Feist that the agenda be approved as presented. 
          CARRIED 

 
3.0 ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 
 

3.1 Regular Council Meeting – December 16th, 2024 
 

002 2501 13  MOVED by Councillor Neels that the Regular Council Meeting minutes of 
December 16th, 2024 be approved as presented. 

          CARRIED 
 

4.0 PUBLIC HEARING – None for this meeting 
 

5.0 DELEGATION  
     

5.1 Dr. Alexandar Darku – Associate Director, Prentice Institute, FCSS 
research 

 
Dr. Darku informed Council that the Prentice Institute have been hired by 
Barons-Eureka-Warner Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) to 
conduct a study on the needs of the community; How the programs FCSS 
currently operate address those needs; and to identify where there may be 
needed resources to address other needs in the community. The first step in 
the study is to ask community leaders their opinions on needed services in 
their communities. Dr. Darku asked Council to participate in one on one 
interviews that ascertain their opinions on needed services in the 
community. Council requested that the interview questions be sent prior to 
the interviews and that they would sign up for the interviews in order for 
FCSS’s study to be successful.  

 
 

6.0 REQUESTS FOR DECISION – None for this meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Regular Council Meeting 
January 13th, 2024                        2               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

7.0 MAYOR’S REPORT  
 

7.1  Mayor’s Report 
 
   December 17 Attended a Lethbridge Regional Waste Management 
    Commission board meeting 
   December 19  Attended a meeting with the RCMP 
   December 20 Attended a Council and Staff Christmas lunch 
   January 6 Attended a Health Professional Attraction and Retention  
    Committee meeting 
   January 9 Attended a Picture Butte and District Chamber of  
    Commerce board meeting 
   January 9 Attended a meeting with the Green Acres Foundation  
    chair, CEO, community members and Town CAO. 
    

003 2501 13   MOVED by Mayor Moore that the Mayor’s Report be accepted as presented. 
            CARRIED 

 
 

8.0 COUNCIL’S REPORT 
 

8.1 Council’s Report 
 
Councillor Neels advised Council of her recent activities: 

   December 17   Attended a Lethbridge Regional Waste Management 
     Commission board meeting 
   December 20  Attended a Council and Staff Christmas lunch 

 
Councillor Feist advised Council of her recent activities: 
December 18  Attended a Lethbridge Southgrow board meeting 

   January 6  Attended a Health Professional Attraction and Retention  
     Committee meeting 

 
Councillor de Kok advised Council of his recent activities: 

   December 20  Attended a Council and Staff Christmas lunch 
    

 
Deputy Mayor Papworth advised Council of her recent activities: 
December 20   Attended a Council and Staff Christmas lunch 

   January 6  Attended a Health Professional Attraction and Retention  
   Committee meeting 

   January 9  Attended a meeting with the Green Acres Foundation  
     chair, CEO, community members and Town CAO. 

 
004 2501 13 MOVED by Deputy Mayor Papworth that the Council Reports be accepted 

as presented. 
           CARRIED  

 
 

9.0 ADMINISTRATION’S REPORT  
 

9.1    CAO Report  
 

005 2501 13 MOVED by Councillor de Kok to accept the CAO Report as presented. 
         CARRIED 

 
9.1.1 Director of Corporate Services Report  
 

006 2501 13 MOVED by Deputy Mayor Papworth to accept the Director of Corporate 
Services Report. 
        CARRIED 
 
 
9.1.2 Director of Parks and Recreation Report 
 

007 2501 13 MOVED by Councillor Feist to accept the Director of Corporate Services 
Report. 
        CARRIED 



Regular Council Meeting 
January 13th, 2024                        3               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

10.0 CORRESPONDENCE – None for this meeting 
 
 
11.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 

11.1 Chinook Arch Regional Library System – Board Report  
 December 2024 
 

008 2501 13 MOVED by Councillor Feist to receive and file Informational Item 11.1 
          CARRIED 

 
 

12.0 CLOSED SESSION  
 

12.1 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 16 – Sunset Park Entrance Landscaping 
Quote 

12.2 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 21 – Memorandum of Understanding – 
Recreation Agreement Extension 

12.3 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 16 – Southern Alberta Energy from 
Waste – Contract Drafts 

12.4 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 21 – Green Acres – Piyami Lodge 
Funding 

12.5 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 16 – Tax Roll No. 718001 
 

009 2501 13   MOVED by Councillor Neels to close the meeting to the public in 
accordance with Division 2 Section 16, 21 & 27 of the Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Privacy Act to discuss Sunset Park Entrance 
Landscaping quote, Recreation Funding Agreement Memorandum of 
Understanding, Southern Alberta Energy from Waste’s Memorandum of 
Understanding, Green Acres Piyami Lodge funding and Tax Roll No. 718001 
at 7:14 p.m. 

            CARRIED 
 
010 2501 13   MOVED by Councillor Neels to open the meeting to the public at 8:26 p.m. 
            CARRIED 

  
011 2501 13  MOVED by Councillor Neels to cancel the Sunset Park Entrance 

Landscaping project and instead direct Administration to plant grass seed in 
the spring and to look at putting a park bench on Tax Roll No. 718001.  
        CARRIED 
 

012 2501 13  MOVED by Deputy Mayor Papworth to approve the Recreation Funding 
Agreement Memorandum of Understanding with Lethbridge County. 

           CARRIED 
 
013 2501 13  MOVED by Councillor de Kok to direct Administration to respond to Local 

Rentals that their proposal for Tax Roll No. 718001 was not accepted. 
           CARRIED 
 
014 2501 13  MOVED by Councillor de Kok to direct Administration to write a letter to 

Alberta Transportation requesting the speed limit on Highway 25 from 5th 
Street North to 2nd Street North be reduced to 30 km/h. 

          CARRIED 
 

015 2501 13  MOVED by Mayor Moore to direct Administration to write a letter to 
Shantone Vermeulen in response to their submitted letter.  

          CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Regular Council Meeting 
January 13th, 2024                        4               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next Regular Council Meeting is scheduled for January 27th, 2025 
beginning at 6:30 p.m. 
 

016 2501 13 MOVED by Councillor de Kok that the Regular Council Meeting adjourn at 
8:32 p.m. 

         CARRIED 
 

   
 
 
 
 
             
Cathy Moore       Keith Davis 
Mayor        Chief Administrative Officer 



 
Memorandum 

 

 
Date: 25th January, 2025 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Re: Bylaw No. 953-25 Tax Exemptions bylaw 
 
Background: 
The attached bylaw outlines the process on how property owners building new units and new non-
residential structures can qualify for tax exemptions. This was presented to Council at the Committee of 
the Whole meeting on the 20th of January and Council’s recommended changes are represented in this 
document. The changes include: 

· Newly built units qualify. This includes semi-detached dwellings, multi-unit dwellings and row 
houses as defined in the Land Use Bylaw; 

· Only new non residential structures that increase the assessment of the property by more than 
$300,000 qualify; and 

· The application fee requirement was removed.   
 
If a property qualifies they are eligible for tax exemptions from the time the building is completed and as 
outlined below: 

1. First Year   100% Property Tax Exemption 
2. Second Year   75% Property Tax Exemption 
3. Third Year   50% Property Tax Exemption 
4. Fourth Year   25% Property Tax Exemption 

  
This bylaw does not have to be advertised and therefore Council can do all three readings of the bylaw if 
so desired.  
 
Recommendation: 

1. To conduct one or more readings of Bylaw No. 953-25 Tax Exemptions bylaw. 
 
Attachment: 

1. Drafted Bylaw No. 953-25 Tax Exemptions bylaw 
 

Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO 

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   



TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE 
BYLAW NO. 953-25 

 
BEING A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE TO ESTABLISH A 
DEVELOPMENT TAX INCENTIVE.  
 
WHEREAS, Section 364.2(1) of the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-
26, as amended, allows a Council to, by bylaw, for the purpose of encouraging 
residential development and the provision of housing in the residential assessment 
class for the general benefit of the municipality, provide full or partial exemptions from 
taxation or deferrals of the collection of taxes;  
 
AND WHEREAS, Section 364.2(2) of the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, 
Chapter M-26, as amended, allows a Council to, by bylaw, for the purpose of 
encouraging development of properties in the non-residential assessment class, for the 
general benefit of the municipality, provide full or partial exemptions from taxation or 
deferrals of the collection of taxes;  
 
AND WHEREAS, the Council of the Town of Picture Butte deems it appropriate to 
provide for property tax incentives for new multi-unit residential and new non-residential 
properties in the form of property tax exemptions to encourage development within the 
boundaries of the Town of Picture Butte;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Town of Picture Butte, in the Province of Alberta 
duly assembled, thereby enact as follows:  
 

1. CITATION: 
  
1.1. This bylaw may be cited as the Tax Exemptions Bylaw.  

 
2. PURPOSE: 

 
2.1. The purpose of the Tax Exemptions bylaw is to: 

1. Establish an incentive program to encourage new Multi-Unit Residential 
and new Non-Residential Developments in the Town.  
 

3. DEFINITIONS 
 
3.1.  For the purpose of this Bylaw, the following words mean:  

1. “Act” means the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26, 
as amended. 

2. “Administration” means the administrative and operational arm of the 
Town comprised of the various departments and business units including 
all employees who operate under the leadership and supervision of the 
CAO.  

3. "Applicant" means a person who applies for an Exemption or their Agent 
as authorized by the land owner through an agent authorization or 
director's resolution;  

4. "Assessed Person" means an assessed person as that term is defined 
under Section 284(1)(a) of the Act. 

5. "Chief Administrative Officer" or "CAO" means the chief administrative 
officer as appointed by Council, including the CAO's delegates; 

6. "Complete Application" means an application submitted pursuant to this 
Bylaw that includes the Application Form as set out in Schedule "A" 
attached hereto; 

7. “Completed” means the date of final inspection of the building permit for 
the Development where Occupancy is permitted.  

8. “Council” means the Municipal Council of the Town of Picture Butte.  
9. “Development” means the construction of a new Multi-Unit Dwelling or 

Non Residential Structure. 
10. "Dwelling(s) or Units" means a self-contained living premises with 

cooking, eating, living, sleeping and sanitary facilities for domestic use 



for one or more individuals but does not include travel trailers, motor 
homes, or recreational vehicles.  

11. "New Construction" means the Development of a new Residential Multi-
Unit Dwelling(s) or a Non Residential Structure(s) constructed on lands 
where there were no previously existing Structure(s) or where previously 
existing Structures have been demolished and removed. 

12. “Non Residential” means any property that is assessed as Non-
Residential.  

13. “Residential Multi-Unit means a property that is zoned Residential Multi-
Unit – R5 according to the Town’s Land Use Bylaw and that has a 
Dwelling that received a development permit. 

14. "Structure" means a building or other thing erected or placed in, on, over 
or under land, whether or not it is so affixed to the land as to become 
transferred without special mention by a transfer or sale of the land.   

15. “Tax Exemption” means an exemption from the municipal portion of 
taxes for New Construction as defined in this bylaw. For purposes of 
clarity, the exemption from taxation applies only to taxes imposed by the 
Town under Part 10, Division 2 of the Act and not any Provincial 
requisitions 

16. “Town” means the Municipal Corporation of the Town of Picture Butte.  
 

4. CRITERIA FOR EXEMPTION 
 
4.1. To qualify for an Exemption, the property must meet the following criteria: 

1. Be located within the geographical boundaries of the Town; 
2. Have the Development occur after the coming into effect of this Bylaw; 
3. Have the assessment class of Residential or Non-Residential.  
4. Development is in compliance with the requirements of the Town’s Land 

Use Bylaw and any other applicable municipal bylaw or regulation, as 
amended from time to time; 

5. The Development must qualify as New Construction as defined by this 
bylaw; 

6. For Non Residential properties New Construction must increase the 
assessment of the property by at least $300,000. 

7. All outstanding property taxes (including amounts added to the tax roll 
pursuant to the Act) on the property have been paid in full and are not in 
arrears.  

8. All required Town development approvals concerning the development 
of the property must have been issued. 

4.2. Tax Exemptions apply to the municipal portion of property taxes only. 
4.3. To apply for a Tax Exemption, an Applicant must meet the following criteria: 

1. The Applicant must be the Assessed Person of the property that is the 
subject of the application; and 

2. The Applicant must have no outstanding monies owing to the Town of 
Picture Butte; and 

3. The Applicant must submit a complete application in accordance with the 
terms of this bylaw. 
 

5. APPLICATION FOR AN EXEMPTION: 
 
5.1. Applicants must submit a complete application to Administration. The 

application form is attached in "Schedule A". 
5.2. Applications must be made within ONE (1) year of the date of assessment 

notice issued with respect to the property which reflects the New 
Construction.  

5.3. Notwithstanding the application requirements set out in this Bylaw, 
Administration may require any additional information that, at the discretion of 
Administration, is necessary to complete the application. 

5.4. Administration will advise Applicants in writing if their application is accepted 
for consideration. Applications accepted for consideration shall become the 
property of the Town and may not be returned. 



5.5. Administration has the discretion to reject applications that are incomplete or 
illegible. 

5.6. Administration will advise Applicants in writing with reasons if their application 
is rejected. 
 

6. CONSIDERATIONS OF APPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. Administration shall review the Complete Application to determine if it meets 

the criteria and requirements for a Tax Exemption and provide a written 
report, with recommendations, to Council. 

6.2. Council shall review the Complete Application and Administration's report and 
may: 
1. Pass a resolution allowing a Tax Exemption for the qualifying property; 

or 
2. Pass a resolution refusing the Tax Exemption Application. 

 
7. TAX INCENTIVE NOTICE  

 
7.1. Where Council has passed a resolution approving a Tax Exemption, 

Administration shall notify the Applicant in writing and specify:  
1. The taxation years to which the Tax Exemptions apply, which must not 

include any taxation year earlier than the taxation year in which the Tax 
Exemption is granted; 

2. Any condition, the breach of which will result in cancellation and the 
taxation year or years to which the condition applies.  

3. The extent of the Tax Exemption for each taxation year to which the 
Exemption applies shall be as such; 

1. First Year   100% Property Tax Exemption 
2. Second Year  75% Property Tax Exemption 
3. Third Year   50% Property Tax Exemption 
4. Fourth Year   25% Property Tax Exemption 

4. A Tax Exemption approved by Council shall be honoured 
notwithstanding this Bylaw being amended or repealed. 

5. A resolution refusing an application must include the reason(s) for 
refusal. 

6. Administration shall provide written notice of a refusal to an Applicant, 
including the resolution passed under section 6.2.2. 

 
8. CANCELLATION OF TAX INCENTIVE AGREEMENT: 

 
8.1. If at any time, after a Tax Exemption is granted under this Bylaw, 

Administration determines that the property did not meet or has ceased to 
meet a criterion referred to in Section 4, Council may cancel the Tax 
Exemption for the taxation year or years in which the criterion was not met or 
to which the condition applies. 

8.2. When Council cancels a Tax Exemption, Administration will send a written 
notice to the Applicant stating the reason for the refusal or cancellation and, if 
a review of the decision is available, the date by which any application for that 
review must be made.  

 
 

9. REVIEW OF DECISION: 
 
9.1. Where a decision made under this bylaw under Section 8 in respect of a Tax 

Exemption is the subject of an application for judicial review, the application 
must be filed with the Court of King’s Bench and served not more than 60 
days after the date of the decision.   
 
 
 

 



10. SEVERABILITY: 
 
10.1. If any portion of this Bylaw is declared invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of 
this Bylaw is deemed valid. 

 
11. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 
11.1. This Bylaw shall come into force and take effect upon receiving the third 

reading. 
 

12. COMING INTO EFFECT 
 
12.1. This Bylaw shall come into effect on the date of the third reading.  

 
 

READ A FIRST TIME THIS              DAY OF                    , 2025. 
READ A SECOND TIME, THIS        DAY OF                    , 2025. 
READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS        DAY OF            , 2025. 

 
 
 
 

TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE 
 

 
_____________________________ 

Cathy Moore  
Mayor 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Keith Davis 

CAO 
 

 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SCHEDULE A 

APPLICATION FORM FOR TAX INCENTIVE 

Owners Name:   
 

Mailing Address:  
 

Email Address:  
 

Phone Number:  
 

Registered Corporate Name: 
(if applicable) 

 

Corporate Registry Office 
Address of Applicant: 

 

 
Qualifying Property Information 

Street Address of Property:  
 

Legal Description:  
 

Tax Roll No.   
 

Development Permit No.   
 

Type of Development:  
 

Date Construction will be 
completed: 

 

Occupancy Date:  
 

 
 
________________________________    ______________________________________ 
Date          Signature of Owner 
 
 
 
        ______________________________________ 

Printed Name of Owner 
 
 
Notes: 

1. Complete applications must be received within ONE (1) year of the date of assessment notice issued with respect 
to the property which reflects the New Construction.  

2. Applications and materials may be included in reports to Council and Council agenda packages. All Qualifying 
Properties may be subject to inspection by the Town Administration to ensure the validity of the application. 
 

 
 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
 
 
_________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Date Application Received     Name of Recipient 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Date Application Approved/Refused 

Personal Information required by the Town of Picture Butte application forms is collected under the authority of sections 33(a) and (c) of the Alberta 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act. Your personal information will be used to process your applications(s). Please be advised 
that your name, address and details related to your application may be included in reports that are available to the public as requires or allowed by 
legislation. If you have any questions, please get in touch with the Town’s FOIP Head at Michelle Overbeeke, Director of Corporate Services @ 403-732-
4555. 



 
Request for Decision 

 

 
Date: 24th January, 2025 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Re:  Alberta Municipalities Spring 2025 Municipal Leaders Caucus 
 
 
Background: 
This year the caucus is being held in Edmonton on the 6th and 7th of March. Alberta Municipalities are 
also hosting a President’s Summit on the 5th of March. I am interested in attending at least the President’s 
Summit on the 5th of March. This years agenda looks interesting and is around managing conflict and 
civil social behaviour. 
 
Traditionally, Council has sent two individuals to the Spring Municipal Leaders Caucus, usually the 
Mayor and CAO if they are available to attend. If Council would like individuals to attend the caucus we 
will need a motion. Administration will then register those individuals. 
 
Financial Implications: 

· The cost for attending the both the President’s summit and Municipal Leaders Caucus is $375. 
$215 for just the President’s Summit and $215 just for the Municipal Leaders Caucus. 

· If caucus is attended in person the costs include: 
o Mileage to Edmonton plus 
o Two Hotel rooms plus 
o Disbursements plus 
o Council remuneration 

 
Recommendation: 
To make a motion allowing two members from Picture Butte to attend the Spring 2025 Municipal 
Leaders Caucus and President’s Summit. 
 
Alternate Options: 

· To send more or less representatives from the Town than what has historically been done.  
 
Attachments: 

· Email from Tyler Gandam, president of Alberta Municipalities 
· Draft agenda for the President’s Summit 
· Draft agenda for the Municipal Leaders Caucus 

 
Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO 

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   



1

Keith Davis

From: Tyler Gandam <president@abmunis.ca>

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2025 12:32 PM

To: Keith Davis

Subject: Join me at ABmunis President’s Summit and Municipal Leaders Caucus

Attachments: Draft Agenda for 2025 Spring Municipal Leaders' Caucus.pdf; Draft Agenda for 2025 

President's Summit.pdf

Dear Mayors, Councillors and CAOs, 
  
As a Mayor and President of Alberta Municipalities, I know firsthand the pressure you face as a leader and member 
of your community.  We are facing increased conflict with our constituents, as well as our peers in the council 
chambers. That’s why our 2025 Alberta Municipalities President’s Summit is focused on the topic of civility.  
  

Our President’s Summit on March 5 provides the opportunity for in-depth, in-person discussions on various aspects 
of civility in municipal leadership, including promoting a civil social media landscape, harassment in council 
chambers and the workplace, and ways to look after yourself and others.   
  

By attending, you will have the opportunity to learn from experts and peers, as well help shape the future of 
municipal leadership across our province to ensure safe and healthy workplaces for years to come.   
  

To help save on travel costs, we’re holding President’s Summit alongside Spring Municipal Leaders Caucus (MLC) 
which follows the Summit on March 6 & 7. Over those two days, you will engage with your colleagues on important 
topics including resources for the upcoming municipal election, a session dedicated to policing, and breakout 
session specific to your municipality type. MLC also provides the opportunity to hear from the Premier, Minister of 
Municipal Affairs, and Leader of the Opposition. 
   
It’s going to be fun. It’s going to be informative. It’s going to be engaging. Don’t miss out.  
  

Register today!  
  

Tyler Gandam    | President
  

E: president@abmunis.ca
 

300-8616 51 Ave  Edmonton, AB   T6E 6E6
 

Toll Free: 310-MUNI | 877-421-
6644 | www.abmunis.ca 

    

To help protect you r priv acy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 

  

   

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are 
addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender. This message contains confidential information and is 
intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee, you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this email. 
  

We respectfully acknowledge that we live, work, and play on the traditional  
and ancestral territories of many Indigenous, First Nations, Métis, and Inuit peoples.  
We acknowledge that what we call Alberta is the traditional and ancestral territory of many peoples, 
presently subject to Treaties 4, 6, 7, 8 and 10 and Six Regions of the Métis Nation of Alberta. 
 

 



Agenda for Spring 2025 President’s Summit 
March 5, 2025 

Westin Hotel, 10135-100 Street NW, Edmonton 
*Subject to Change* 

 
 

Wednesday, March 5 

Time Topic  Session Description  

8:00 a.m. Registration and Breakfast 
9:00 a.m. Opening remarks  President Tyler Gandam to bring remarks on 

civility.  
 

9:15 a.m. Plenary: Common Ground Toolkit Common Ground Politics has been undertaking 
significant research into Alberta’s political 
landscape over the past few years. The initiative 
includes a toolkit which builds common 
vocabulary for problems facing civil dialogue in 
politics.  
 
Dr. Wesley will speak to the Common Ground 
Toolkit and how to effectively use the kit in local 
government. ABmunis is a supporting partner of 
the Common Ground initiative.  
 

10:15 a.m. Break  

10:30 a.m. Breakout session: From Discord to 
Harmony: Mastering Conflict in Local 
Government 

Municipal elected officials often face conflicts in 
decision-making and interpersonal dynamics.  
 
This session will explore practical strategies for 
managing disagreements, fostering collaboration, 
and maintaining professional relationships in the 
face of political tension. 
Participants will gain tools for effective 
communication, conflict resolution, and 
navigating reactions in real time.  

 
10:30 a.m. Breakout session: Promoting a civil social 

media landscape  
Social media plays a key role in political 
discourse and has been blamed for degradation 
in community conversations and abuse of elected 
officials and staff.  
Join our speakers to gain insight into developing 
strategies to help manage social media and how 
current elected officials are engaging and utilizing 
AI.  
 
This session will bring key take-aways to shaping 
a more positive political environment.  
 

12:00 p.m. Lunch 

https://www.commongroundpolitics.ca/toolkit


1:00 p.m. Plenary – Canadian Barometers Project  The Canadian Barometers research partnership 
focuses on understanding and improving 
municipal democracy by routinely surveying local 
elected officials on their experience with abuse 
and their level of satisfaction in the role.  
 
The plenary will dive into preliminary insights into 
their more recent survey and the ways in which 
this data helps support community leaders.  
 

1:20 p.m. Plenary – Harassment in the Council 
Chamber and Workplace 

Municipal councillors are facing increased levels 
of harassment both in and outside of council 
chambers. Due to the unique nature of their role, 
they are not protected under workplace laws in 
the same way as a municipal employee. It is also 
challenging to hold councilors accountable 
should they create an unsafe workplace for 
municipal staff.  
 
This session will feature legal, law and policy 
perspectives on harassment in the municipal 
workplace.  
 

2:20p.m. Break 

2:30 p.m.  Breakout sessions: Looking after yourself 
and your colleagues   

Leaders are often called on to support others, but 
they also need to look after themselves.  
 
This session will focus on concrete ways to care 
for yourself and others during times of difficulty.  
 

2:30 p.m. Breakout Session: Acting in the moment: 
How, when and why 

This session aims to help participants identify 
harm that happens in their workplaces and 
council activities, and considerations for 
addressing that harm in real-time or after the 
fact.  
 
Through practical tools and discussions, 
participants will gain confidence in being a 
positive bystander, helping to prevent harm and 
fostering a culture of accountability and respect 
in their communities. 
 

4:00 p.m. Break 

4:15 p.m.  Preparing Alberta’s Future Municipal 
Leaders   

A session focused on the realities of running for 
municipal office. This panel will feature unique 
perspectives including:  

- Living through tumultuous times at the 
council level 

- Choosing to run for council during 
difficult transitions 

- Hiring a new CAO and developing a 
relationship 
 

4:45 p.m. Closing remarks   

 



Agenda for Spring 2025 Municipal Leaders’ Caucus 
March 6 and 7, 2025 

Westin Hotel, 10135-100 Street NW, Edmonton 
*Subject to Change* 

 
 

Thursday, March 6 

8:30 a.m. Registration and Breakfast/CAO Breakfast 
9:30 a.m. President’s Opening Remarks and Transition from President’s Summit 
9:45 a.m. Minister of Municipal Affairs’ Remarks 
10:00 a.m. Update from Federation of Canadian Municipalities 
10:05 a.m. Break 
10:20 a.m. Plenary Session on Water 
11:20 a.m. Plenary Session on Resources for Municipal Election 
11:50 a.m. Opposition Leader’s Remarks  
12:00 p.m. Lunch 

1:00 p.m. 

Municipal Breakout Sessions: 
• Cities 
• Towns 
• Villages & Summer Villages – (healthcare to be one topic among other 

interactive discussions) 
2:20 p.m. Premier’s Remarks 
2:35 p.m. Ministers Dialogue Session I 
3:35 p.m. Break 
3:45 p.m. Ministers Dialogue Session II 
4:45 p.m. Closing Remarks  
5:00 - 6:30 p.m. Ministers’ Reception sponsored by RMRF 

 
Friday, March 7 

8:00 a.m. Registration and Breakfast 
9:00 a.m. Plenary Session on Municipal Finance Research Project 
9:25 a.m. Plenary Session on Resolutions 
9:50 a.m. Requests for Decision 
10:05 a.m. President’s Report and Update from AMSC 
10:30 a.m. Break 
10:45 a.m. Plenary Session on Policing 
11:45 a.m. Closing Remarks and Lunch to Go 

 
 

 



 
Request for Decision 

 

 
Date: 24th January, 2025 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Re: Bylaw No. 954-25 Centennial Celebration Committee  
 
Background: 
Last year Council decided to recognise 1926 as the settlement of Picture Butte and thus celebrate 100 
years of settlement in 2026.  
 
Council should establish an official Council Committee in order to plan for and organise events in the 
centennial year.  
 
The Procedural Bylaw (Bylaw No. 902-20) defines a Committee of Council as “a committee, board or 
other body established by Council”. These are different to committee’s that Council appoint members to. 
 
Attached is a drafted bylaw, Bylaw No. 954-25 Ad Hoc Centennial Celebration Committee. A summary 
of the bylaw that has been drafted includes: 

· That the committee is an Ad Hoc Committee and will dissolve on the 31st of December, 2026; 
· Committee members up to 30 people. This number should be discussed; 
· Outlines what kind of individuals and organisations should be on the committee; 
· Outlines member responsibilities; 
· Chair shall be a member of Council; and 
· Duties, goals and objectives of the Committee are outlined. 

 
If Council is okay with the drafted bylaw they can accept it as presented or as amended.  
 
An advertisement for committee members can be circulated and the informal group currently meeting can 
be transformed into a Committee of Council and be officially established. 
 
Recommendation: 

1. To provide feedback to Council regarding the drafted Bylaw No. 954-25 Centennial Celebration 
Committee. 

2. If the bylaw is acceptable pass first reading of Bylaw No. 954-25 Centennial Celebration 
Committee. Second and third reading can occur if there are no proposed changes. Otherwise I 
would suggest doing first reading, allowing Administration to make amendments and then conduct 
second and third reading next Council meeting.  

 
Attachments: 

1. Draft Bylaw No. 954-25 Centennial Celebration Committee bylaw. 
 
 
Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO 

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   



TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE 
BYLAW NO. 954-25 

 
A BYLAW OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE, IN THE PROVINCE 
OF ALBERTA, TO ESTABLISH AN AD HOC CENTENNIAL CELEBRATION 
COMMITTEE IN THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE 
 
WHEREAS Section 145 of the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26, as 
amended, provides that a Council may pass bylaws in relation to the establishment and 
functions of Council Committees and the procedures to be followed by Council 
committees;  
 
WHEREAS Section 146(a) of the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26, 
as amended, provides that a Council Committee may consist entirely of Councillors; 
 
WHEREAS Council wishes to establish an Ad Hoc Council Committee to plan a 
coordinated approach to celebrating the Town’s Centennial anniversary; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Municipal Council of the Town of Picture Butte, hereby enacts 
as follows: 
 

1. CITATION 
 
1.1. This bylaw may be cited as the Ad Hoc Centennial Celebration Committee. 

 
2. DEFINITIONS 

 
2.1. In this bylaw: 

 
1. “CAO” means the Chief Administrative Officer of the Town of Picture Butte; 
2. “Committee” means the Ad Hoc Centennial Celebration Committee; 
3. “Council” means the Town of Picture Butte Council; 

 
 

3. AD HOC CENTENNIAL CELEBRATION COMMITTEE 
 
3.1. There is hereby established an Ad Hoc Council Committee to be known as 

the Centennial Celebration Committee. 
 
 

4. MEMBERSHIP  
 
4.1. The Committee membership should consist of no more than 30 members from 

the community who can support the purpose of the Committee. Suggested 
membership is to include, but not be limited to: 
1. Members of Town Council    (3); 
2. Member of Lethbridge County Council  (1); 
3. Town of Picture Butte staff    (1); 
4. School Board Representatives   (2); 
5. Picture Butte & District Chamber of Commerce (1); 
6. Community Not for Profit Organisations  (2); 
7. Town residents     (3); 
8. Lethbridge County residents   (2); 
9. TOTAL      (15)   

 
4.2. The following qualifications will be considered for appointing members to the 

Committee:  
For Organisations: 

1. Organisational mandate aligns with the goals and objectives of the 
Committee. 

2. Demonstrated experience in partnership activities, special event 
delivery and community engagement. 



For Individuals: 
1. Experience working in teams, with community groups, not for profit 

boards or organisations; 
2. Demonstrated experience in partnership activities, special event 

delivery and community engagement.  
 

4.3 Member responsibilities shall include:  
1.  Attend and actively participate in all scheduled and special Committee 

meetings and any Sub-Committee meetings that they are a member; 
2. Be an active participant in delivering the goals and objectives of the 

Committee; 
3. Attend Town of Picture Butte and other community organisation’s events 

and initiatives, where appropriate and when available; 
4. Solicit and share feedback from the public on the Committee’s plans and 

activities; 
5. Be a resource to Town staff in their area of expertise. 

 
4.4 Town of Picture Butte representatives responsibilities include:  

1.  Act as the Committee lead, chair and schedule meetings, booking meeting 
space, moderate discussions and summarise meeting discussions.  

2. Contribute to Committee discussions and work with Committee members to 
establish the Town wide plan and program for the Centennial celebration of 
Picture Butte in 2026.  

3. Connect organisations to each other to build partnerships and to share 
information about the Centennial celebration plans. 

4. Develop and execute Town run programs, events and services that 
celebrate the Town’s Centennial anniversary. 

5. Provide updated on Town initiatives that relate to the goals and objectives 
of the Committee. 

 
4.5 Members shall be appointed until the 31st of December 2026.   
4.6 By mutual consent, the Council and the Committee may with reason, request 

the resignation of any of the members, prior to the expiry date of the member's 
appointment. 

4.7 Any member may resign at any time upon sending a written notice to the CAO. 
4.8 A person may be disqualified from remaining a member of the Committee if 

he/she fails to attend, without being authorized by a resolution of the Committee 
to do so, three (3) consecutive Committee meetings. 

4.9 If a member of the Committee is disqualified from remaining a member under 
subsection 5.6., he/she is deemed to have resigned his/her seat on the 
Committee 

 
 
5. SUB-COMMITTEES 

 
5.1. Sub-Committees may be formed to provide additional support to the 

Committee. Individuals and organisations not part of the Committee are 
eligible to be part of sub-committees.  

5.2. Sub-Committees will be determined, as necessary, when the Town’s 
Centennial Celebration plan has been developed and additional support and 
areas of focus are determined.  

5.3. Sub-Committees may be created for the following areas: 
1. Marketing and Communications 
2. Events 
3. Community Engagement 
4. Volunteers 
5. Youth 
6. Seniors 
7. Sponsorships and Funding 
8. Tourism 

 
  



6. PROCEEDINGS 
 
6.1. The Chairperson of the Committee shall be a Town Councillor.  
6.2. The secretary shall be a member of Town administration. The roll of the 

secretary is to: 
1. Prepare agendas, with the Chair, for the meeting; 
2. Keep minutes of the meetings and distribute them to the members. 

6.3. Meetings of the Committee shall be held on a regular basis at a time to be set 
by resolution of the Committee. 

6.4. A majority of members of the Committee constitute a committee. Attendance 
via electronic means is considered acceptable for meeting quorum and 
attendance requirements. 

6.5. Any decision of the Committee that is reached by a majority of quorum shall be 
deemed to be the decision of the Committee. 

6.6. Minutes of the Committee shall take place at each meeting and will be 
maintained as an official record of the Town. 

6.7. A copy the minutes shall be distributed, via email, to Committee members 
within one week of the meeting whenever possible. 
 
 

7. DUTIES OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
7.1. The purpose of the Committee is to:  

1. Plan a coordinated approach to celebrate the Town’s Centennial 
anniversary in 2026. 

2. Bring members of the community together to develop a Town wide plan to 
celebrate the Town’s Centennial anniversary in 2026. 

3. To serve as the community table at which local leaders and organisations 
will provide input, collaborate, plan and execute events, activities and 
initiatives that will take place in 2026.  
 

7.2. The goals and objectives of the Committee are as follows:  
1. Provide input and support to Town Council and staff to develop a Town 

wide plan for the Town’s Centennial celebration.  
2. Provide input and support to Town Council and staff to develop 

communications and outreach plans for the Town’s Centennial 
celebration. 

3. Assist in planning and delivering the Centennial celebration events and 
initiatives as needed.  

4. Collaborate and determine partnership opportunities between community 
members and the community leading up to and during the anniversary 
year.  
 
 

7.3. All members of the Committee are expected to abide by the following 
principles for partnership and partner engagement: 
1. Be open and respectful; 
2. Be inclusive and accessible;  
3. Foster collaborations to spur action; and 
4. Be responsible to the needs of the community. 

 
 

8. BUDGET 
 
8.1. Any requirement for funds to deliver events and initiatives by the Town is 

subject to the approval of Town Council. 
8.2. Neither the Committee nor any member thereof shall have the power to 

pledge the credit of the Town in connection with any matter whatsoever; nor 
shall the Committee or any member thereof have the power to authorize any 
expenditure to be charged against the Town. 
 
 



9. MEDIA & COMMUNICATIONS 
 
9.1. All media contact shall be made through Town Council or staff including the 

provisions pertaining to the use of the corporate logo, letterhead, website, 
social media, media advertisements and the like. 
 

10.  COMMITTEE TERM 
 
10.1. The Committee shall be dissolved effective 31st December, 2026.  

 
 

11.  COMING INTO EFFECT 
 
8.1 This Bylaw shall come into force and effect on the date of the third reading. 

 
 
 

READ A FIRST TIME THIS      DAY OF JANUARY, 2025.  A.D. 
READ A SECOND TIME THIS           DAY OF JANUARY, 2025.  A.D. 
READ A THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS               DAY OF JANUARY, 
2025. A.D.               
 

 
 

TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE 
 

 
_____________________________ 

Cathy Moore  
Mayor 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Keith Davis 

CAO 



 
CAO Report 

 

 
Date: 24th January, 2025 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Wastewater Project 
Submissions for responding to resident concerns has been submitted to Alberta Environment. An 
environmental impact study will be occurring when the weather is suitable.  
 
Dr. Recruitment 
Dr Edegbe will be taking appointments for his practice on the 29th of January and will begin patient 
consultations on the 5th of January. This has been advertised on Facebook.  
 
Carpet Install at the Library 
This project has been completed. The walls in the library were painted while the shelves were out and 
new carpet has been installed. The library is still closed throughout January until all of the books are 
replaced. The project went quite smoothly and was well organised.   
 
Municipal Development Plan 
Kattie is working on the background information and is planning on arranging a meeting with the 
working group at the end of February.  
 
Miscellaneous Items since last Council meeting 

· I have finished performance evaluations with all the staff that report directly to me.  
· Kristin Rice, our new Administrative Assistant will begin work on the 27th of January and will be 

at the Council meeting. 
· We offered a job to Colin Clarke who has the necessary experience to become our Water and 

Wastewater operator. He is scheduled to begin on the 3rd of February.  
· A couple of Land Use Bylaw amendments (Home Occupations in Large Lot Residentials and a 

Direct Control Zoning for 862 Crescent Avenue) will be presented to Council on the 24th of 
February. 

· The Millenium Capsule date is the 19th of August, 2000. This was most likely done at Jamboree 
Days in 2000. We will further discuss this project at next Council meeting on the 10th of February.  

· I contacted Land Titles regarding the historical ownership of the land where Piyami lodge is 
located. At time of writing I have not heard back from them. The historical title did not have the 
information back further enough to deduct if and when the Town owned the property. 

· Michelle and I have had budget meetings with all department heads. All department heads are 
preparing budget presentations for the 17th of February Committee of the Whole Meeting.  

· A Safety Codes Council audit is occurring this week so I have prepared documents for their 
review and will be having meetings this week in regards to this. This a routine audit and nothing 
has trigged it. It is just our lucky turn to go through the process.  

· Feedback was given to SAEWA regarding their drafted Memorandum of Understanding. 
· All municipalities have signed the Recreation Agreement MOU extension. 
· I hosted a CAO breakfast at Eddies with all of the CAO’s in Lethbridge County on Thursday the 

23rd of January.  

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency 

   



· Nobleford and Coalhurst CAO’s met with Frank and I and discussed the upcoming Fire Services 
Agreement discussion scheduled for Wednesday of this week with Lethbridge County.  

· It has been a very busy month and I don’t think February is looking at being any less busy. 
 
 
HOLIDAY STATUS 
Days in lieu used 0 hrs out of 70 hrs   Accrued Holidays  38 days 
 
Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO 



PICTURE BUTTE EMERGENCY SERVICES

2024
ANNUAL REPORT

@PictureButteFireDept@PictureButteFireDept

@picturebutteemergencyservice@picturebutteemergencyservice

@PButteFire@PButteFire



120 - 4th Street North, Picture Butte

403-732-4100

fireprevention@picturebutte.ca

https://www.picturebutte.ca/

P.O. Box 1065, Picture Butte, AB T0K 1V0

CONTACT US:



16

18Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s
Ta

bl
e 

of
 C

on
te

nt
s 2A Message From the Fire Chief

3A Year in Review

5Calls To Service

6Event Statistics

11Operational Highlights

13Life Safety Initiatives

152024 Recruits

17Community Safety

Looking Forward

2 02 0

Your PB Firefighters Hard at Work

2 42 4





2

It is once again a privilege to present the 2024 Annual Report on behalf on the
members of Picture Butte Emergency Services. This report aims to highlight the
extraordinary work your Picture Butte firefighters, paramedics, and officers do on
a daily basis to serve this community and make the Picture Butte area a great
community to live in.

This past year brought a consistent work load of fire and rescue calls with
emergency medical events finally seeing a decline after several years of
unprecedented growth. Our members remained steadfast in their commitment to
continual improvement through training, education, and research. Our community
should be particularly proud of our EMS division for achieving another 4-year
Qmentum Accreditation through Accreditation Canada in 2024. This recognition
shows our departments commitment to quality improvement in emergency
medical services and displays our value of providing high-quality patient-centered
care with an emphasis on patient safety. I want to congratulate our paramedics
and EMS leaders for achieving this national recognition!

As we look ahead to 2025 and beyond, I am excited to see many regional
collaboration projects working towards completion including the regionalization
of our emergency management programs with our partners in Coalhurst,
Nobleford, Barons, and Lethbridge County. This new regional program will provide
increased collaboration between our municipal governments and focus on
improved preparedness in our communities for the next potential disaster. We are
also working towards implementation of our regional fire response plans and
regional fire prevention programs through Community Connect (stay tuned!).
On behalf of the members of Picture Butte Emergency Services, I hope you enjoy
the 2024 Annual Report on the activities of your fire department.

Sincerely,

Fire Chief Frank West

Director of Emergency Services

PBES Annual Report

A Year of Pride in Service

A MESSAGE FROM THE FIRE CHIEFA MESSAGE FROM THE FIRE CHIEF

Fire Ch i e f  Frank Wes tFire  Ch i e f  Frank Wes t



This year, even though there was a decline in call volume, we remained
active with a total of 1,021 service calls, marking this year as the fourth in
departmental history to exceed 1,000 events. Notably, we experienced a
0.7% rise in structure fire calls, a 0.6% increase in motor vehicle collision

responses, a 1.13% uptick in wildland/outdoor fires, a 0.2% growth in
technical rescue responses, and a 2% increase in fire medical responses.

Annual ReportPBES

Motor Vehicle Collisions

Structure Fires

Vehicle Fires

Wildland/Outdoor Fires

Technical Rescues

30
16
8
21
4

YEAR IN REVIEWYEAR IN REVIEW

3

Tender Responses (Mutual Aid)

Ambulance Responses

21
868

Fire Medical Responses 145



Annual ReportPBES 4

Training Hours

Certification
Courses

Community
Events

Volunteer Hours

2 445

3770.5

5

16



EMS Events
872

Good Intent Calls
169

Fire Events
119

Alarms Calls
33

Rescues
4

Annual ReportPBES

CALLS TO SERVICECALLS TO SERVICE

5

1021  EVENTS1021  EVENTS
1 1 13  UNIT  RESPONSES1113  UNIT  RESPONSES

INCIDENT TYPES

4Rescues

Fire Events 119

EMS Events 872

MVCs30

Good Intent Calls 169

Hazardous Conditions (No Fire) 5

Alarms Calls 33



0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Echo

Delta

Charlie

Bravo

Alpha

Omega

Transfers

24

209

252

133

199

197

CALL VOLUME PER AREA
Town County Other Total

EMS Events Fire Events MVC
0

200

400

600

800

1000

308

145

419

872

25
81

13 119 5 25 30

Annual ReportPBES 6

INCIDENT SEVERITY

Event Statistics 2024Event Statistics 2024



Lethbridge
26.6%

Picture Butte
23.5%

Leth. County
23.5%

Nobleford
9.8%

Other
5.9%

Barons
2.3%

MD of Taber
2.3%

PICTURE BUTTE -132

LETH COUNTY - 132

NOBLEFORD - 55

BARONS - 13

COALDALE - 8

COALHURST - 6

LETHBRIDGE - 149

VULCAN COUNTY - 12

MD OF TABER - 13

MD WILLOW CREEK - 8

OTHER -33

Annual ReportPBES

Event Statistics 2024Event Statistics 2024

7

BREAKDOWN OF
MEDICAL RESPONSES

AMBULANCE
ONLY



Picture Butte
63.7%

Lethbridge County
36.3%

0

10

20

30

40

50

13

30

43

65

 MEDICAL FIRST RESPONSE
*FIRE ONSCENE BEFORE EMS

Annual ReportPBES 8

CO-RESPONSE
37

Lethbridge
County

Town of 
Picture Butte TOTAL

*INCLUDES LIFT
ASSISTS 



TOTAL CALLOUTS
125

FIRE
25

MVCs
5

TOTAL CALLOUTS
169

FIRES
94

MVCs
25

Annual ReportPBES

Event Statistics 2024Event Statistics 2024

9

TOWN OF
PICTURE BUTTE

LETHBRIDGE
COUNTY

FIRES - 16%

MVCs - 3.2%

TOTAL CALLOUTS - 125

FIRES - 33%

MVCs - 9%

TOTAL CALLOUTS - 169

BREAKDOWN OF FIRE
RESPONSES PER REGION



TOTAL CALLOUTS TOTAL UNIT HOURS

TOWN COUNTY
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

125

80

169

335

Annual ReportPBES 10

43%

57%

81%

19%



In 2024 we added two Zoll Cardiac Monitors and a Zoll
Autopulse to our equipment inventory. 

11

NEW EQUIPMENT

Annual ReportPBES

OPERATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTSOPERATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS

50%
IN 2024, THE INCREASE IN AVAILABLE AMBULANCE RESOURCES IN THE PROVINCE,
RESULTED IN A

AS A RESULT, THERE WAS A REDUCTION IN “CODE RED” (WHERE THERE IS NO AVAILABLE
AMBULANCE) EVENTS, RESULTING IN FEWER MEDICAL FIRST RESPONSE CALLS BY:

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTSOPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

 REDUCTION IN OUT OF COMMUNITY EMS CALLS (SUCH AS

40% IN THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE

30% IN OUR RESPONSE DISTRICT

OUR AMBULANCE RESPONDING TO EMERGENCY EVENTS IN THE CITY OF LETHBRIDGE).



Lieutenant Dylan DeRick

Firefighter Dylan DeRick was promoted to the rank of
Lieutenant, now serving as the lieutenant of C Platoon.

Qualified Officer Edric VandeBruinhorst

Firefighter Edric VandeBruinhorst was promoted to
the rank of Qualified Officer

Senior Firefighters Katie Maclean,
Layton Vande Stroet, & Kailey Jakober

This year, three firefighters were promoted to Senior
Firefighters after completing all the qualifications.

12

1 325.5 MAN
HOURS SPENT

ON EVENTS
1 325.5 MAN
HOURS SPENT

ON EVENTS

Number of Mutual Aid Events

Number of Unit Responses

Coaldale Coalhurst Nobleford
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Annual ReportPBES

PROMOTIONSPROMOTIONS

MUTUAL AID RESPONSESMUTUAL AID RESPONSES

20

28 29

19 18

34

EVENTS

UNIT
 RESPONSES

91



13Annual ReportPBES

LIFE SAFETY INITIATIVES

Lethbridge County’s 60th Anniversary
event in Shaughnessy - July 12, 2024

Senior’s Week celebrations at
Piyami Lodge - June 6,  2024

DDS Kindergarten Field Trip
Station Tour- June 11,  2024

GEMS Group Station Tour 
       

Lethbridge County Learning Council Fire
Safety Presentations 

      
Piyami Lodge Seniors Station Tour 

       
Community Bike Rodeo

     
PARTY Program Mock Collision

    
Senior’s Week Celebrations at Piyami

Lodge
   

DDS Kindergarten Class Station Tour
       

Lethbridge County 60th Anniversary
  .  

Daycare Station Tours

Job Fair Recruitment Booth

Fire Prevention Week 2024
     

And many more impromptu station tours,
school fire drills, and safety inspections.  

IN 2024, OUR FIRE PREVENTION TEAM
AND FIREFIGHTERS PARTICIPATED IN
A NUMBER OF COMMUNITY EVENTS

AND LIFE SAFETY INITIATIVES,
INCLUDING:

Daycare Station Visit -
October 31, 2024



Community Bike Rodeo in Partnership with AHS, Peace Officers, RCMP, and
Southwest Alberta Road Safety Society.

May 30, 2024

Annual ReportPBES 14

PARTY Program Mock
Collision scenario hosted

in partnership with Alberta
Health Services and RCMP
for grade 9-12 students at
Picture Butte High School.

June 3, 2024

COMMUNITY EVENTSCOMMUNITY EVENTS



15Annual ReportPBES

RECRUITSRECRUITS

FF Kyle Arnoldussen FF Jared Evers FF Kaden Zmeko



16Annual ReportPBES

YOUR PICTURE BUTTEYOUR PICTURE BUTTE
FIREFIGHTERS HARD AT WORKFIREFIGHTERS HARD AT WORK



17

WOULD YOU
SUPPORT

MAKING 5TH
STREET NORTH

A ONE-WAY
STREET WITH
TRAFFIC ONLY

BEING
ALLOWED TO

TRAVEL
NORTH TO
CRESCENT

AVENUE FROM
HIGHWAY 25?

69.9% 

30.1%

WOULD YOU BE IN
SUPPORT OF LOWERING
THE SPEED LIMIT IN ALL

RESIDENTIAL AREAS FROM
50KM/HR TO 40KM/HR?

67.6% 

32.4%

WOULD YOU BE IN
SUPPORT OF

HARMONIZED SPEED
ZONES FOR SCHOOL AND

PLAYGROUND ZONES?

39.3%

60.7%

WOULD YOU
BE IN

SUPPORT OF
A SET TIME

FOR
PLAYGROUND

ZONES?

24.8%

75.2%

WHEN
PARTICIPANTS
WERE ASKED

WHAT
SUGGESTIONS
THEY HAD TO

IMPROVE SAFETY
WHILE CROSSING

THE STREET IN
TOWN, THE

NUMBER ONE
RESPONSE WAS

“SPEED
CONTROL”

Annual ReportPBES

COMMUNITY SAFETYCOMMUNITY SAFETY
In an effort to enhance community safety and address residents'

concerns, the bylaw services completed a comprehensive review of local
bylaws, incorporating feedback from two public surveys. Out of the 145

respondents, valuable insights led to significant changes set to take
effect in 2025. Among the updates, residential speed limits will be

reduced to 40 km/hr, aligning with the harmonization of school and
playground zones to 30 km/hr from 0700 - 2300 hrs, 365 days a year to

ensure a safer environment for the children of our community.
Additionally, to improve intersection safety and traffic flow, 3rd Street

North and 5th Street North will transition to one-way streets. These
changes reflect the community's input and aim to foster a safer and more

cohesive neighbourhood environment.

TRAFFIC BYLAW SURVEY RESULTSTRAFFIC BYLAW SURVEY RESULTS



18

In 2025, our community is excited about the anticipated
advancements in road safety and emergency medical
services. A significant development is the ordering of a
new ambulance to replace our existing frontline unit,
which, despite a two-year build process, is expected to
arrive by 2027. This new addition promises to enhance
our emergency response capabilities significantly.

Furthermore, we are optimistic about expanding our
medical services by training all of our firefighters to a
minimum level of an Emergency Medical Responder
(EMR). This initiative is contingent on the success of our
grant funding application, which, if approved, will allow
us to provide comprehensive training in-house for our
members. 

These changes underscore our commitment to
improving public safety and ensuring our community is
well-equipped to handle emergencies efficiently and
effectively.

Annual ReportPBES

LOOKING FORWARDLOOKING FORWARD



Committee Meeting 
7th October 2024                        1               Chair  _______    Secretary______ 

MINUTES 
OF THE 

HEALTH PROFESSIONAL ATTRACTION & RETENTION  
COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD AT 
PICTURE BUTTE TOWN OFFICE 

Tuesday, October 7th, 2024 AT 6:30 PM 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Cathy Moore, Deputy Mayor Cynthia Papworth, Dave Feist, Teresa 

Feist, Boyd Folden, Curtis Watson, Mattie Watson, Susan O’Donnell, Gloria 
Elaschuk 

 
ALSO PRESENT:  Keith Davis, Town Administration 
   
   
 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Boyd Folden called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 
 

2.0 ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
 MOVED by Deputy Mayor Papworth to accept the agenda as presented. 

CARRIED 
 

3.0 MEETING MINUTES  
 
MOVED by Teresa to accept the 7th of October meeting minutes as presented. 

CARRIED  
 

4.0 DISCUSION ITEMS 
      
  
4.1 Retention and Attraction Activities 
 
Hello and Goodbye Event 
The committee discussed the event to thank the current and existing doctors including 
Dr. Bowden, Dr. Leishman and Dr. Mohammed for their service and at the same time 
welcoming the new doctors including Dr. Edegbe and Dr. Lowry to the community. 
 
The committee decided to host an event in January, 2025.  
 
MOVED by Curtis to request the Picture Butte and District Chamber of Commerce to 
make Dr. Bowden, Dr. Leishmann and Dr. Mohamed the citizen’s of the year for 2025.  

          CARRIED   
 
 
4.2 Doctor Recruitment Update 
 
Keith informed the committee that the Town had completed their agreement with Dr. 
Edegbe for assistance for a medical office assistant/manager. The Town will be 
contracting a hiring company to assist in the advertising and hiring of the medical office 
assistant for Dr. Edegbe. The doctor is working towards practicing in Picture Butte in 
December.  
It was suggested that a doctor profile is done when Dr. Edegbe begins in Picture Butte.  

    
5.0 NEXT MEETING DATE & ADJOURNMENT  

 
The next committee meeting is scheduled for the 2nd December, 2024 beginning at 
6:30 p.m. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:02 p.m. 

      
 
 
             
Boyd Folden       Keith Davis 
Chairperson       Secretary 



Committee Meeting 
2nd December 2024                        1               Chair  _______    Secretary______ 

MINUTES 
OF THE 

HEALTH PROFESSIONAL ATTRACTION & RETENTION  
COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD AT 
PICTURE BUTTE TOWN OFFICE 

Monday 2nd December, 2024 AT 6:30 PM 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Cathy Moore, Deputy Mayor Cynthia Papworth, Dave Feist, Teresa 

Feist, Boyd Folden, Mattie Watson, Susan O’Donnell, Gloria Elaschuk, 
Lorne Hickey 

 
ALSO PRESENT:  Keith Davis, Town Administration 
   
   
 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Boyd Folden called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 
 

2.0 ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
 MOVED by Mayor Moore to accept the agenda as presented. 

CARRIED 
 

3.0 MEETING MINUTES  
 
MOVED by Lorne to accept the 7th of October meeting minutes as presented. 

CARRIED  
 

4.0 DISCUSION ITEMS 
      
4.1 Doctor Recruitment Update 
Mayor Moore and Keith updated the committee on the progress that the Dr. Edegbe is 
making in preparing the space in order to operate his clinic. His wife, son and he 
came to Picture Butte in early November and toured the clinic to see what work still 
needed to occur and what equipment was there. He met with Dr. Mohamed who 
toured him through the space and advised him on how Dr. Mohamed operated the 
space. Town Council representatives met with Dr. Edegbe and his family and took 
them out to lunch.  
Hire Standard have been advertising and screening applicants for the Medical Office 
manager. Dr. Edegbe has met with one of the candidates and will be meeting a 
couple of other candidates that have gone through Hire Standard’s screening 
process.  
Dr. Edegbe will be in Town at the clinic on the 9th of December and was wondering if 
anyone would be willing to help him move some things around in the clinic. 
Committee members offered assistance. Keith to let the committee members know 
what time Dr. Edegbe would like them at the clinic.  
Keith also explained that the doctor is looking for a cleaning company that he can hire 
to take care of the clinic cleaning. Suggestions included Dave and Terry Cobb and the 
cleaners that clean the lab.  
 
4.2 Retention and Attraction Activities 

 Hello and Goodbye Event 
The committee discussed this event and decided that the 29th of March 1-4 p.m. would 
be a good tentative date to plan for the event. Mattie will bring a list of things that will 
need to be organised in order for the event to happen and be successful. The committee 
will begin working on the event throughout February and March. 
The committee also discussed inviting the nurse practitioners and Phil Mac to the event.  
 
MOVED by Mattie to add Phil Mac to the list of individuals that the committee thinks 
should be recognised as citizens of the year for 2025.  

CARRIED 
 
Mattie will send an amended letter to the Chamber of Commerce. Cathy will find out 
when a decision will be made around the Citizen’s of the Year for 2025.  
Keith to ask Lindsay about grant money from RhPaP and to see if the Community 
Centre is available for the 29th of March, 2025.  



Committee Meeting 
2nd December 2024                        2               Chair  _______    Secretary______ 

 
 

    
5.0 NEXT MEETING DATE & ADJOURNMENT  

 
The next committee meeting is scheduled for the 6th of January, 2025 beginning at 
6:30 p.m. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:11 p.m. 

      
 
 
             
Boyd Folden       Keith Davis 
Chairperson       Secretary 



Leslie Martin 
Box 102 
Shaughnessy, Alberta, T0K 2A0 
leslie.v.martin14@gmail.com 
403-382-8967 
 

January 23, 2025 

 

Mayor Cathy Moore 
Council Members 
Town of Picture Butte 
120 – 4 Street North 
Picture Butte, Alberta, T0K 1V0 
 

Dear Mayor Cathy Moore and Members of Council, 

 

Re: Invitation to Tour Bee Hive Child Care Center 

 

I am writing to formally invite you to visit the Bee hive Child Care Center for a tour of our 
facility prior to your next council meeting on February 10, 2025. 

 

As a cornerstone of our community, Bee Hive Child Care Center is dedicated to providing 
high-quality early learning childcare services that support the development and well-being 
of children in Picture Butte and surrounding areas. This visit will offer you an opportunity to 
observe firsthand the programs, resources, and services we provide, the space we provide 
it in, as well as to engage with our staff and board members and understand the impact of 
our work on local families. 

 

We currently have a waitlist of over 40 families waiting to access quality childcare from the 
community and surrounding areas. While we would love to provide care for all families, our 
current location is limiting us. We believe this tour will provide valuable insights as you 
continue to shape our community. We are flexible and happy to accommodate your 
schedule on that day to ensure your visit is convenient and productive. 

 



Please let us know your availability and if there are any specific areas of interest you would 
like us to highlight during the tour. We look forward to welcoming you and sharing more 
about how Bee Hive Child Care Center contributes to our vibrant community. 

 

Thank you for considering our invitation. If you have any questions or require additional 
information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 403-382-8967 or 
leslie.v.martin14@gmail.com. 

 
Yours sincerely, 
Lesle Martin, 
 
 
Board President, 
Bee Hive Child Care Center 



 

Agriculture Centre, 100, 5401 1 Avenue S 
Lethbridge, Alberta T1J 4V6 

   403-381-5166   
  www.nrcb.ca 

 
 
January 21, 2025 sent by email 
 
 
To Referral Agencies: 
 

• Alberta Environment & Protected Areas 
• Lethbridge Northern Irrigation District 
• Town of Picture Butte 

 
Re: Application LA25007 – Determined Complete 

Vanden Dool Farms Ltd. 
NW 10-11-21 W4M 

 
Please be advised that we have received the Part 1 and Part 2 of an application for a manure 
storage facility on the NW 10-11-21 W4M. The application is to construct two pens, each 40 m x 30 
m and two shelters. The total proposed dimensions are 80 m x 30 m. The shelters are within the 
footprint of the pens and are not separate facilities. The applicant is not proposing an increase in 
animal numbers. 
 
As a courtesy, we are providing you with information about this application as your ministry/ 
organization may have a regulatory interest. 
 
You may wish to communicate with the applicant directly in response to this application. If you plan 
on sending a response to the NRCB, please do so by February 19, 2025. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me at 403-340-5358 or lynn.stone@nrcb.ca. 
 
Yours truly, 

 
Lynn Stone 
Approval Officer 
 
Encl. Determined Complete Application 
  
 
 

mailto:lynn.stone@nrcb.ca


Part 1 - General Information & Disclosure NRCB il:llll,lll:ii",',',,11,,
Application under the Agricultural Operation Practices Act (AOPA) for a conflned feeding operation (CFO), manure collection area, or
manure storage facility permit

NRCB USE ONLY

E Approval E Registration E Authorization

NRCB Application Number Date stamp

CONTACT INFORMATION

Applicant information

Name

Peter Vanden Dool

Corporate name (if applicable)

Vanden Dool Farms Ltd.

Add ress
(Street/P.o. Box) p.6. Box 610

City/town

Picture Butte

Prov i n ce

AB

Postal code

TOK 1VO

Agent consent (if applicable)

I, hereby give consent for
(name of applicant)

to act on my behalf or as my agent for this application.

(name of agent and company)

Signed this _day of ,2O-,
Signature of Applicant

LOCATION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

Legal land description(s) (Qtr-Sec-Twp-Rg-W Mer)

NW-10-11-21-W4

Municipality
Lethbridge County

Registered landowner(s) Is the applicant the registered landowner?

E Yes E No 1ff ro, please attach letter of consent, ensure that it is signed by all
landowners)

Does this legal land description have an existing permit or permits for CFO facilities? E yes E t'lo

NRCB USE ONLY - existing permit(s), livestock number(s) and related comments

Last Updated 02Mar2022 Page 1 of 3

x
LA25007 NRCB APPLICATION

21 JAN 25
RECEIVED



Part 1 - General Information & Disclosure NRCB iJ;.Jl? l,lliilii"rli,I,,r

Describe what is being proposed, including changes to facitities, changes to animal numbers, or changes
to types of livestockt €.g.r beef, dairy, hog, poultry, etc.

We are proposing to construct 2 corrals 125' by 90' with 36' by 75' open sided shelters for our dry cows. The base of the
shelter and a majority of the corral will be dirt floor with a 16' concrete apron behind the feed bunk.

Livestock Numbers: (include all permitted and proposed livestock). Note: If total livestock numbers increase in your Part 2

application, a new Part 1 application must be submitted which may result in a loss of priority for minimum distance separation (MDS).

Livestock category and type
(Available in the Schedule 2 of the Part 2 Matters

Reou lation )

Permitted livestock
numbers

Proposed increase or
decrease in number

(if applicable)
Total

Dairy Cows(plus dries and replacements) 520 520

APPLICATION DISCLOSURE

I, the applicant, or agent of the applicant, am responsible for confirming that this proposed development can meet the municipality's
land use planning requirements (Municipal Development Plan, Intermunicipal Development Plan, etc.) and municipal setback
requirements, and is not located in a right of way.

I acknowledge that this information is collected under the authority of the Agricultural Operation Practices Act, is subject to the provisions
of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, and shall be deemed public unless the NRCB grants a written request that
certain sections remain private.

From the date Part 1 is accepted by the NRCB, I, the applicant, or agent of the applicant, have six months to complete and submit
Part 2 of this application, together with any supporting documentation I need to complete the application, unless an extension is
granted. I, the applicant, acknowledge that failure to meet the six-month timeframe may result in denial of the application by the
NRCB.

I, the applicant, or agent of the applicant, acknowledge that any construction prior to obtaining
the required AOPA permit is an offence and subject to enforcement action, including prosecution.
1, the applicant, or agent of the applicant, have read and understand the statements herein and acknowledge that the information
provided in this application is true to the best of my knowledge.

January 16,2025

Date of signing

Vanden Dool Farms Ltd. Peter Vanden Dool

Corporate name (if applicable)

Last Updated 02Mar 2022

Print name

Page 2 of 3



Part I - General Information & Disclosure NRCB i U;l;Iii,l.i;1ii"rli,1*.r
The required information below is not for public disclosure and is only for NRCB, municipal, and referral
a9ency use.

Applicant contact information

Name

Peter Vanden Dool

Preferred phone number(s)

403-31 7-391 1

Ema

peterd.dool@gmail.com

Agent contact information (if applicable)

Name Corporate name (if applicable)

Preferred phone number(s)

Ema

Note: Correspondence will be sent electronically unless otherwise requested.

Last Updated 02Mar22 Page 3 of 3

USE ONLY
Application Number



Part z- Technical Requirements NRCB : !,1HItl,lfi lll"dl;ll o

App lication u nder the Agrricu lturol Operotion Proctices Act f ot a conf ined feed ing operation, m a nu re collection area, a nd/or m a nu re storage facility(ies)

NRCB USE ONLY

E Approval E Registration E Authorization

E Amendment

Application number Legal land description

APPLICATION DISCLOSURE

This information is collected under the authority of the Agricultural Operation Practices Act (AOPA), and is subject to the
provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. This information is public unless the NRCB grants a

written request that ceftain sections remain private,

Any constfuction prior to obtalning an NRCB permit ls an offence and is subject to enforcement actloh, including
prosecution.

I, the applicant, or applicant's agent, have read and understand the statements above,
provided in this application is true to the best of my knowledge.

January 16,2025

Date of signing

Vanden Dool Farms Ltd.

Signature

Peter Vanden Dool

Corporate name (if applicable) Print name

GENERAL INFORMATION R ENTS
Proposed facilities: list all proposed confined feedlng operation facilities and their dimensions. Indicate whether any of the
orooosed facilities are additions to existinq facilities. (attach additional paqes if needed)

Proposed facllities Dimensions (m)
(length, width, and depth)

2 corrals 40x30x1

2 shelters with an open south side in the corrals 23x11x3.75

Existing facilities: list ALL existing confined feeding operation facilities and their dimensions

Existing facilities Dimensions (m)
(length, width, and depth)

NRCB USE ONLY

LA24O3B

USE ONLY

Last updated September Lt,2023

AO Note: The applicant is proposing 2 pens, each 40 m x 30 m. The total proposed dimensions
are 80 m x 30 m. The shelters are within the footprint of the pens and are not separate facilities

x LA25007 NW 10-11-21 W4M

Application LA25007 Page 1 of 19



Existing Facilities

dimensions in (m)

L Old dairy barn 76 x20.8
2 Calf barn 1 10x23
3 old maternity barn 2L.8 x10.8

4 old EMS 19.3x33x3.6
5 old dry cow barn 1,4.2 x24
6 New dairv barn 31.9 x 1.82.8 + 27.6 x 114.6

7 new EMS 100 x 45 x 3.6 (actual size L15 x 66 x 6.5 deep)

8 old catch basin 40x40x3.5
9 feed pens 20x46 + L47.6 x 30 + !7 x44,5 + 86 x 24+23 x 30.5

10 solid manure storage pad 6.1 x 7.3

t1 New calf barn 3L.7x19.5+7.3x3
12 New catch basin 75x50x6
13 Proposed corrals 80x30

Application LA25007 Page 2 of 19



Application LA25007 Page 3 of 19



t{I{
g;'

E
*'

W
rer
rt

Application LA25007 Page 4 of 19



Part z- Technical Requirements NRCB |;ll:i 1l,.iri:li",li,,'"i..r
Application under the Agriculturol Operotion Proctices Actfor a confined feeding operation, manure collection area, and/or manure storage facility(ies)

If a new facitity is replacing an old facitity, please explain what will happen to the old facility and when. E t.lZa

December 2026
Construction completion date for proposed facilities

Additional information

Livestock numbers: Complete only if livestock numbers are different from what was identified in the Part 1 application, Note: if
livestock numbers increase in your Part 2 application, a new Part l application must be submitted which may result in a loss of

for minimum distance MDS

Livestock category and type
(Available in the Schedule 2 of the Part 2 Matters

Regulation)

Proposed increase or
decrease in number

(if applicable)

Last updated September tt,2023

Permitted number Total

10 changes

Application LA25007 Page 5 of 19



Part 2 - Technical Requirements NR CB I u,ll:l? i,Iiill11li,lt,o
Application under the Agricultural Operotion Proctices Act fot a confined feeding operation, manure collection area, and/or manure storage facility(ies)

DECLARATION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF APPLICANT CONCERNING WATER ACT LICENCE
issued by Albefta Environment and Protected Areas (EPA) for a confined feeding operation (CFO)

Date and sign one of the following four options

OPTION 1: Aoplvinq throuqh the NRCB for both the AOPA oermit and the Water Act licence

I DO want my water licence application coupled to my AOPA permit application.

Signed this _day of
Signature of Applicant or Agent

1. I (we) acknowledge that the CFO will need a new water licence from EPA under the Water Act for the
development or activity proposed in this AOPA application.

2. I (we) request that the NRCB process the AOPA application independently of EPA's processing of the
CFO's application for a water licence.

3. In making this request, I (we) recognize that, if this AOPA application is granted by the NRCB, the
NRCB's decision will not be considered by EPA as improving or enhancing the CFO's eligibility for a

water licence under the Water Act.
4. I (we) acknowledge that any construction or actions to populate the CFO with livestock pursuant to an

AOPA permit in the absence of a Water Act licence will not be relevant to EPA's consideration of
whether to grant the Water Act licence application.

5. I (we) acknowledge that any such construction or livestock populating will be at the CFO's sole risk if
the Water Act licence application is denied or if the operation of the CFO is otherwise deemed to be in
violation of the Water Act, This risk includes being required to depopulate the CFO and/or to cease
further construction, or to remove "works" or"undertakings" (as defined in the Water Act),

6. AS RELEVANT: I (we) acknowledge that the CFO is located in the South Saskatchewan River Basin
and that, pursuant to the Bow, Oldman and South Saskatchewan River Basin Water Allocation Order
[Alta. Reg. L7L/ZOO7I, this basin is currently closed to new surface water allocations,

7. Provide: Water licence application number(s)

Signed this _ day of 20
Signature of Applicant or Agent

OPTION 3: Additional water licence not reouired

1 . I (we) decla re that the CFO will not need a new licence from EPA u nd er the Water Act for the
development or activity proposed in this AOPA application,

2. Provide: Water license number(s) or water conveyance agreement details

c12111 1060NW

signed this 16 day of JanuarY ,2025

20

Last updated September 1L,2023

of Applicant or Agent

Application LA25007 Page 6 of 19



Part z - Technical Requirements NR CB !:,..:1,'l i,i,rl :ll'',11,'.in
Application under the Agriculturol Operotion Proctices Actfot a confined feeding operation, manure collection area, and/or manure storaBe facility(ies)

CFOs onlv)

1. At this time, I (we) do not know whether a new water licence is needed from EPA under the Water Act
for the development or activity proposed in this AOPA application.
If a new Water Act licence is needed, I (we) request that the NRCB process the AOPA application
independently of EPA's processing of the CFO's application for a water licence.
In making this request, I (we) recognize that, if this AOPA application is granted by the NRCB, the
NRCB's decision will not be considered by EPA as improving or enhancing the CFO's eligibility for a

water licence under the Water Act.
I (we) acknowledge that any construction or actions to populate the CFO with additional livestock
pursuant to an AOPA permit in the absence of a Water Act licence will not be relevant to EPA's

consideration of whether to grant my Water Act licence application, if a new water licence is needed.
I (we) acknowledge that any such construction or livestock increase will be at the CFO's sole risk if the
Water Act licence application is denied or if the operation of the CFO is otherwise deemed to be in
violation of the Water Act. This risk includes being required to depopulate the CFO and/or to cease

further construction, or to remove "works" or"undertakings" (as defined in the Water Act).
AS RELEVANT: I (we) acknowledge that the CFO is located in the South Saskatchewan River Basin

and that, pursuant to the Bow, Oldman and South Saskatchewan River Basin Water Allocation Order

[Alta. Reg. L77/2007], this basin is currently closed to new surface water allocations.
7. Provide: Water license number(s) or water conveyance agreement details

2.

3.

4

5.

6.

Signed this _ day of 20
Signature of Applicant or Agent

Last updated September Lt,2023

Application LA25007 Page 7 of 19



oNo!EooonoEol

coG,9o.E
I

t!ooco-9o,oEocoufo(,,

o6tto0)oql
-9go,E(,Lolt+0,coGco.EocEoC

l
4IoEuoxt0cooEo.EacoEt

zou.t
ttfEUdz

oPc(,EoI

6Ic
o9E

E
E

'5E
'

tU

oztr €.>o
m

 oE
ur 

r.u !+

trtr8

oztr E
.>o

(.n tnl:
r.u ru 

!-r

!tr8

oztr E
.>o

a 
o!

LU
[!=

trtr8

oztr €.>o
t 

oE
r,u ru =
trtr8

oztr E
.>o

( 
a'Q

r.r.J uJ =

ntr8

oo,

=(JoII

(V
l

ttUooooLo-

trt

ntr
Ntoooooo.

E
E

trtr
r{t0,oorLoa-

gE

iltr

ocoz
0)coz

E
,l

cU
I

xU
J

E
E

E
tr

ocoz
0)Coz

.Y
o

.CE
G

3o
EO

q)coz

.YoEcotrc
F

o
O

.,
LIE
>

E
E

L
oe
E

tr
IE

EIIEtt

olnE
 t-

C
 

kr 
oo)

P
 o or

ior(fl

E
;E

g
E

 
o 

6 
Lr.

$;gE
E

: E
 H

3;
iu!:€
h 

>
.Y

 
o

'- 
>

!- 
C

p 
O

 
u- 

>
P

;e k a
;E

E
 

9-A

Eo=
o=
p

c.-=
:U>

o
ooQ
. E

'h
o:3#E
:ou
b'5 e
>

cE
cou
F

E
p

co5

=
E

 
E

IoE

trO
-C

)
='=

oo
5 

0r-
oE

E
o @

9
o)tro
>

lO

.eE
5

o-c
>

cJO
.8tr
cs 

L
lo00
E

 ea
s=a3 q

=
cro
o o^ 

X
.t 

or'i;
-. o i1 o
9B

-3 6
=

o
O

 ^n 
O

=
-ol

"tr>
o

3i 
pr i

E
!E

;
;E

 
\ 

$J
ou6b
ood 

-
r: 

-(J
! 

i 
oll

m
!P

ro
'- 

'lg >
- -

.C
oO

'1

=
5eE

LooBo)
E

.

co0)
DoEE

qr
=

-o
=

E

loLO
J

Ef,

e€!0J
oP
!=r 

oG
.

u6c

B
P

 b
o9.? .
-=

A
:B

'o
ts5=
rom
>

oE

uo!leLuroJu!
u1eld poo;1

uollP
ruJoJu!

Jalern ofeJJns
uolletrJJolul

JA
ler!,\punoJ9

E
!a,Ja

ir!.-(!,.cc
Z

.IJ

Jj 
r";

!rtqro
tioooct 

E
t

oo
tro

aoLLoooo.c@(I,
coEo(o
O

N
E

,u 
s

?r'H
t-\

:z 
EaIa_o!9_o{Uoo

G
L

oo
:\.>

 
'o

U
h

N
-

sh@
Q

J
3=ooaJ
Y

6

=
ito:14

U
E

tE
o.a

C
I;

6!cS
.qs
U

A
oE

F
EY14rOc>E

qr
-c

c!
€.e
rc

o { 
!

?.ut
- 

C
).r '6 

>
g q zE
E

 E
 oa-

O
 E

 E
E

'T
li 

u 
<

;q
oi 

P
 

=
 i8

- 
- 

=
o--

J+
H

A
i 

6E
s

q E
 =

bH
1S

 :ts
f, S

 F
U

T
V

oT
O

m
.F

l 
h 

=
:g

F
 

^o. !.,o
a 

v 
ziF

E
 S

 zT
E

cJ ! 
O

€'
O

.i 
clc)

l-1 5 
IS

b
', i 

iv,is
I.U

,^L
I 

o 
.Y

o

N
 E

 d!!
L): 

d*l
'L E

 gt.g
,d 

9 
<

, tr=
o: s usr

rit
E

tlq)
?o
,=

O
E

3X
!-

lrJ 
O

.

Application LA25007 Page 8 of 19



NoN.io!EooEoo!of)

ol
.cl
-lolP

I
ol

(nl
0l\lC

I
ol
zlr)I
\ooloxqJ

!ol

.s-oo)
,EcopoL;o,

dui
0J 

0)

=
>

o;l
C

G
oB

o(J
-o3
!sooa6
.Y

', 
d)

oEooC
 

J
octro
0Jt
O

-
LC
oto
(,(J
(,) 

,^'
qii!
JU

O
J

!F
.:

C
U

oIJ'-

bu 
e

6-6
qJE

lE
'o9.
8: 

,0
f,8 

t
E

h 
-E YE

of 
v_ e

E
3 

5,=
cor-=

rtr
X

9oo
>

.=
:!

.-E
 

U
E

on-ot
cV

olE

=
g 

g >
I 

e 
>

E
E

 H
 3t

E
 I 

.iE
aJE

;iE
E

,F
=

'o9.tr
ooco
L!03'E
oojot!
-LL-
ufcE
E

 E
 

t.b
E

F
o=

p 
J;; 

o. 
'=

6 
5al 

c 
o

- 
(ool 

<
 

tr
d E

*l e 
,e

E
 

{d{ 
" 

t
xol 

+
t

x*o<
l*(

f,L)U=3c'EUf!oLo-o,lcoELlzUo(.,,

i;ooo,u.EEo::co0)O
J

o-EUzol-l
FUA

.
a.Fooo.

=o(JozU
J

dfz=doltlr,t
oooz

JzouJt,DoUdz

oc
oO

E
T

E
3'qJ

-G
bE

g
,2i I
s*i.:

a
|,/D

oa

3E
i

l!-uEoutro.9o

O(oLO

$.t
@oo)

covoLuoot!,cTEtn0,

$=
I

N
II

o)I

uJa

s=
I

N
I

-
I

o
I

uJ
z

$=
I

N
II

(f)I

= z

o0)

EotrLfoo,E,90,
z

oEo!oJ

!.ocaLoco!CoL(n

cBoctlcJ

13

tna.C2:LA

rC7t 
t

)tr 
o

tl 
f I 

ur
,i 

Y
 

U

V
Z

E
olrJd(9zl-ldDo

30
:>

+
E

U
P

H
dl|J
grZ
E

o
ilF5aE

A
E

U
J

:(a
;ocaioP

.d
:o.
E

4
_E

o
E

e9z)HE
r-

E
 

,U
'

iHexE
U

J
p fl;
A

cF
)rE

l{
o-E

 d
E

e ?
oE

 
r!

tru 
s

.E
S

 
H

-r 
d

xT
 

o
il t 

h

?I 
E

'
.r 

t: 
J

V
G

-
.l.b=

-ua
+

at1
'eE

 
a

f $ x
Ir 

3
N

E
 2

E
€ 

r<

flE
 

B

Application LA25007 Page 9 of 19



Part 2 - Technical Requirements NRCB iU.lff;ilf,il?.',ll,tio
Application under the Agricu lturol Operation Practices Actlor a confined feeding operation, manure collection area and/or manure storage facility(ies)

SOLID MANURE, COMPOST, & COMPOSTING MATERIALS: Barns, feedlots, & storage facilities -
Naturally occurring protective layer
(complete a copy of this section for EACH barn; feedlot, and storage facility for solid manure, composting materials, or compost with
a naturally occurring protective layer for the llner)

Facility description / name (as indicated on site plan) ,. 2 corrals

2.1A24038

E I plan to use a short-term solid manure storage (STMS) as part of my manure storage and handling plan for this CFO, (The AOPA

requirements for STIYS are set out in the NRCB Slrort"l tlrrn Soiicl Ifil.i.r3 S!0Ic_1il_o_ ill.ftilit:r:n:i:ttll i:a-ct Slir:rrt.

Describe the run-on and runoff control system
There is minimal run-on water. The run-off water will go to the catch basin in LA24038

Manure storaqe

Leng th (m) Width (m) Depth below ground level (m) NRCB USE ONLY
Estimated storage capacity (m3)

1
80 30 0

2

TOTAL CAPACITY

Thickness of naturally
occurring protective layer

10.7

-(m)

Provide details (as required)

Soil texture
%o sand o/o clay

Hydraulic conductivity
- naturally occurring

protective layer

Depth and type of soil tested

10.7 clay

Hydraulic conductivity (cm/s)

4.6 x 10^-8 cm/s

Describe test standard used

falling head test

Additional information (attach copies of soil test reports) NRCB USE ONLY

Requirements met: n Yrs n ruo

condition required: E ves f] rrro

Report attached: E vrs E rtro

Last updated February 26,2021

Application LA25007 Page 10 of 19



July 24,2017

Amec Foster Wheeler File: 8X30484

Vanden Dool Farms Ltd.
P.O. Box 610
Picture Butte, AB TOK 1V0

Attentlon: Mr. Peter Vanden Dool

Anrec Foster Wheeler
Environment & lnfrasiructure
463 - 40 Street South
Lothbridge, AB, CAt{AuA 11J 4M1
Tel +1 (403) 32?-7474
Fax +1 (403) 327-76a?

AMEC
foster
wheeler

Re: Geotechnical Review and Evaluation
Proposed Catuh Easin
NW-I0-11-?1-W4, near Picture 8utte, Alberta

As requesled, Amec Foster Wheeler Environment & lnfrastructure has carried out a geoteclrnlcal
review and evaluation of the above captioned site relative to the required protection of the
groundwater resource, as required by the Agricultural Operation Practices Act, AB Reg.267l2OO1
(hereinafter referred to as "AOPA"). This letter encompasses the soil conditions associated with
the proposed catch basin, to be located north of an existing lagoon, as illustrated on Figure'1.

ln order to demonstrate the suitability of the natural clay soils for consideration as a naturally
occurring protective layer, a series of threee boreholes were advanced at the site on June 14,
2017 . The boreholes were advanced at the approximate locations illustrated on Figure '1.

The boreholes were advanced by a truck-mourrted drill rig, and extended to depths of 7.6 m below
existing grades. Chilako Drilling Services returned to the site on July 14, 2017 in orderto redrill
and install a new test well in borehole BH17-02. At this time, borehole BH'17-02 was exlended to
10,7 nt depth. These boreholes were logged by an Amec Foster Wheeler EIT (see attachments).

ln general, the soils encountered in the boreholes vrrere predominantly clay till, with lacustrine
medium plastic clay observed to about 3 m depth. No groundwater resource (as defined by the
AOPA) was identjfied within the 10.7 m drilling depth.

ln orderto demonstrate the permeability of the subsurface soils, a 50 mm diameter PVC monitoring
well was constructed in borehole BH17-02. The test well was screened from 6.9 m to 10.1 m
depth. Well saturation of the 50 mm diameter monitoring well was oarried out by fllling the
rnonitoring well to the top of the well for several consecutive days After several days, the 24 hour
water drop in the standpipe at BH17-02 was measured to be about 1 .47 m.

ln order to calculate the permeabillty of the screened poriion of the clay $tratum at the test well
location, a modified falling head test (as outlined in the USBR Engineering Geology Field Manual
Volurne 2 [2O011t was used. The input variables and output data are outlined on the ln Situ
Permeability Iesl report, attached. As outlined on the report, the results of the ln situ permeability
testing indioato a hydraulic conductivity, k", af #H x 10'B cm/s.

Using the measured permeability of the clay stratum, the 3.1 m portion of clay which has been
screened at borehole BH17-02 has been estimated to represent an equivalent of about 67 m of
naturally occurring materials having a hydraulic conductivity of '1 x 106cm/s. This represents

www amecfr,rt,com 2 LL .,4 -^t
HaOeO t@ttb

Application LA25007 Page 11 of 19



July 24,2017
Vanden Dool Farms Ltd.
Geotechrrical Review and Evaluation - Proposed Catch Basin
NW-10-l 1-21-W4M, near Picture Butle, Alberla

arn*c foster wheeter ,

natural material protection in excess of the minimum requirements outlined by the AOPA for catch
hasins (minimum 5 m, Section 9.5-b),

Conclusion

Elased on the re$ults of the current investigation and perrneability testing, and our understanding
of the site and proposed development at the site, it is Amec Foster Wheeler's opinion that the
naturally occurring materials at the site satisfy the requirements for a naturally occurring 'protective

layer' for the proposed caich basin, as outlined in the AOPA.

While a naturally occurring protective layer was ascertained for the sile, it is noted that localized
silty sand lenses were encountered at about 1.3 m depth in one of the boreholes. Following
excavation of the lagoon, the base and sideslopes shoulcl be reviewed, and any sandy layers
observed should be subexcavated to a minimum depth of 1.0 m and replaced with well compacted
low permeable clay soils. The extent of excavation will require field determination at the time of
construction. ,Amec FosterWheeler can assist further in this regard

We trust this satisfies your present requirements. lf you have questions or require further
information or clarification, please don't hesitate to contact the undersigned.

Respectfully submitted,

Arnec Foster Wheeler Environment & lnfrastructure
A division of Amec Foster

APEGA Permit; P04S46

Figure 1 - Borehole Location Plan
/n Situ Pernteability Test Calculations
Borehole Logs
Explanation of Symbols and Torms used on Logs

*-*3g. *b-

Jotrn Lob[ezoo, P.Eng.

'3/

s H

Amec f:o$ter Wtreol0r rile: t1X30484

u{4e{e"'f

Application LA25007 Page 12 of 19



U

E

I

I

Amec Foster Wheeler Environment & lnfraslructure
4s9 - 40h Slrat Sosh

L€thbridg0, Albsrh GAIJAOA T1J 1M1
Tat lAoXl327-1.14
Fu (401) 327-7682

II Vanden Dool Farms Ltd.

TITLE
BOREHOTE LOCATION PLAN

OWN 6Y:
BJ NA

DATUM: DA'E: 
JUNE 2017

PROJECT Vandsn Dool NRCB Pormeabllity Testing
NW10-'t1-21-W4M

near Plcture Butte, Alberta

CHKO 6V;
BM

PROJECT NO:

8X30484 FIGURE 1SCAtEr
NTS

I
tt-

k

Catch
Basin

{i BH17-oo

Application LA25007 Page 13 of 19



BH17-02

ln Situ Permeability Test

Modified Falling Head Permeability Equation

[-,^u-,1 
.l

u = l_I """',..rnl zH, - t"l _r,,1 ZLy_r::L1l"' - zr.ntl z "'lzn, ^t ) "'liu,n,- tii, ll
L " ' J 'I '| ''l

taken from USBR Engineering Geology Field Manual Volume 2 (2001)

BH'1742 - Vanden Dool Farms Ltd.

Amec FosterW eeler Flle: BX30 84

foster
wheeler

T
ha

*4 leo
+{"1

IJ
tr
t
E
(*
r{,

Jd
u

+
5
T
V)

-*_

easlf,-J.wt%

Ks = 4.6E-08 cm/gec

amec

t
L

-L

ao
LrJJ6
s
x.

Ff
E

Terms Value Deflnlthn
D 0.0520 diameler o{ slandpipe (m)
De 0.1500 dlameter of borohole (m)
L 3.10 longth of sand seclion (m)
h1 10.60 initlal height of water above base of hole (m)
h2 9.13 flnal height of water above base of hole (m)
I 44.0 tlme ot test (h)

Application LA25007 Page 14 of 19



rpaseiEoUE,,

s0rt
DESCRIPTION

S1

53

S4

s5

S6

S7

S8

s9

sl0

brown, nioisl

,..softer at 2.9m depth
,..coal and oide indusions below 3,0m depth

.. intemitlent sand stringem [mm 5,1rt! to 5.5m deplh, loose

,,.solter lrom 6.1m lo 7 4m depth

Notes:
1, BoBhole log lo be read in c0njLlftction wlth funec Fosler

\Mteeler report 8X30484. For detlniticns oI ler.rns and rymbols
used on logs reler to slresls following logs,

2, Borehole open upon mmplelion, surface l';ater entry during
drilling.

3 25mm PVC slandpipe installed u6n completion oldrilling,
hand.slotted tmm 1 5m to 7.6m depth Annular space backfilled

vJith drill drttings, bentonite cap at sudace

:-1" :"':":-":" r":"

Amec Foster Wheeler
Environment & infrastructure

Application LA25007 Page 15 of 19



P.geffnrrlA

CLIENT: Vanden Dool Farms Ltd.

sOrt
DESCRIPTION

: :a: : : : : : :

._:'",i /] ..:. ,;, .i._.;.. ;...i

i :q : : : ; i i

..i.,t,, i...;.. i...i..,i... i,..;

io:i:::;:io:i:::;:

'a":a':"'i" :"':"';"' i"'i"

iO: : : '. : : : ',

'"ra:'"i"'t" i''':"T' :''i''

ra: : r a ; : I :

"'i' !' ":"':" :"'i""" i"'i"

.1."i..'!.'.1.. i...!...:

,, bro|t below 0,7n deptlt

..sand/silt lens (200mm thitlr) at 1.3m depth

,. softer btirm 1.5m depth

. .lre(Dming grey (basal lill) bslow I2m depth

'1. Borehole log lo be read in con)unclion vJih Ari€c Fost€r
Steeler reoorl 8X30484, For deflnilions of temrs and svand symbois

2017; Maciine screen from 7 0m to 10.0m depth; Sand bedding
lrpm 6.85m lo 10.05m depth. Benionite plug lrom 2nr to 6.95m.

s1

s2

s3

s4

s5

s6

s8

SS

s10

Amec Foster Wheeler
Environment & lnfrastructure

Application LA25007 Page 16 of 19



T

ipasei&2*o-%

OTHER TESTS
COMMENTS

SOIL
DESCRIPTION

PP=05'20k9/cm2

PP:1 0 kg/cm2

PP='l s kg/cmZ

PP='l 0 kg/nrnz

PP.1,5 kg/cm2

PP"l 5 kg/cn2

sl

s2

s3

s4

s5

S6

S7

S8

55

Notes:

1. Bcrehole log to be rnad in cnnjunciion with Amec Fosler \l/lteeler
re port 8X30484, For deftnrtions ol terms and symbols used on logs

nefer lo sheets following lcgs.
2. Boehole open upon completion, surface water entry during drillinq,

3. Borenole backfitled vrith drill cutlings

r; .,,',.. ;,. . i ,. ,:., . ;. ,.1 ,

:a:i::i:

.. ;.ri..,r". ;',.;,..:". i...i,,

d:i::;ii

'I'1"'1"':" :"'j"'l"'1"a'I'1"'1"':" :"'j"'l"'1

Amec Foster Wheeter
Environment & lnfrastructure

Application LA25007 Page 17 of 19



MODIFIED UNIFIED CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM FOR SOILS

LABORATORY
CLASSIFICATION

CRITERIA

ATTE(NTRO DMITi
EELOW iA' LIIIE OR
Pr Ltss lMN4

C,, * 
ffi'G: 

c"'ffi*t toa

MAJOR DIVISION TYPICAL DESCRIPTION

'AEI i GRATJED GFA'{ELS GEA'!T1 W')
MrtTilRrS t,,fTLli $fi QoFt{ts

poonl Y 6ftreto oftAWLs
CR}.VE[ trNfl IIIXfUREC tIITI&OR
N0 tiIEA

stl TY GRAVet A. CRA\#I ,SD $ll

c, * [o-!,r, c."
CLEAN GRAVELS

(LITTLE OR NO
FINHS]

OIRTY GMVELS
(WITH SOME

FrtlES)

CLEAN SANNS :

(L|ITLE CtR N0 1.
FTNES) 

1

SPECiAL SYMBOLS

SOIL COMTON[NT$

3iF..( 9r2e

LO
CODE

E'

f!
z
r
F.

_^Ev,t u
dyu)4
nruFzz.
<9E lJl

yl>
\')E

e\a7

f
t-
IUt
U
3.

(Dd1=1103
0o' Drou] c

Egs
JT'

o4Q?

+r ; tr:ti2*l
Ii1.!l.lFoeUff

E6p
a.l

trr E

tr0*
f, ir ?

n$izo- Giq
?{uF,)r00i

FkI

H6iou+

l;q] fiAUIF
tD- a6rqt,6
-ll!r(')a) rL lf c

nul 4
Q Z. Ii,4&:

o
muJl-z
i^ut ).;i<
1,A'i
3ootr fr-1

(aI M$trliec^lttw
flg0urB*HEatrS

YELLOW
[I]XTLI fiES

CLAYEY ONAVEI,5, 6TIAW. MT
CLA? iliIIURFIJ

RED ilf.r-L (aa)80 6altDt 0HAIELr ?
iaNrt (]TfrFoSNaFrNd$

PCOBI Y 6RAI}EO iiN0'i liRA!?,i LY
$Lfit6 Ltf'il ( DQ N0 n&ii S

YELLow ! o,r* 
"o"ro 

sArlD girr ulxrungs

h6siRtpl0n

,0ilicNT
oF fl|iE{
EiC€EDS
l7'4

affiec forter wheoter .#

ATTEFEsEG U',IIT5
BELOY] 'A' LINE dF
P I LENS TMU {

ATTERASRa l.a4i'rs
AEDVE 'A'LiIiE
p 1 i!3Re TtN 

'

N0l Mttllls ffiry..t
ttEoulEE!.lEr(5

^-;:
€
5,
r
z
T
t..
(.
rlJ

aj
olu)a
OFul=zt3
$'*o:
uJs
LU
LJ

:f
z
::
F-
U
n(
O
2
,::,

Wf 50%

wt<'J)rA

lD% <wL< 50%

i

i w> 50%

{,l,€

I

: wL" 50%
I

Wg 5()'t't

HIGhLY ORGANIC SOILS

tr
tu

O()

r TME5tONE

FL/rtiTlCITY CHA*T FnR

{I&ro

llolf-6-
I ALL SrElt 6rZE$ *.(ENnONEi: Ot.l rhr5 gB^EI tn6 U s SMDAA& A* I fi U,t1

? caAR$8 fahArN $d Jt s \\tTtl i t[ l rx nNES c il1:x ctt{Hn6, GRoup $yMaa]16,
E G Gw'6C tS A t{tLL &RADpb GIAVEL SA}rt t tx',rune W I }t CLAy iltrOEti
EE,WE(N 5 Ar{n ratprrE$

uEfrN[!6 ftir6f5 flF

PERCENTAEE SY I'.GJChI OT

MIT]OR CUilAOXENIS

*
ils
e

Px
5

d

l0

a

0

:5-50

20.19

r 8.16

,,i,,-.-,*....t" *ttfis

OVHRGIZEN i,4ATE;1IAL

NDf ROUNhIO

ftBcK Fh6sKEtirs ! 76mn

ItotKs , 0 7$ cuutc uurRl tN rioLuM[

lNqR6ANlC SlLlt ltilD \G.RY rlruE SANDS
ao*\ rlaufi *i i) 53fl0J op $Lr6Y1
!t AsltcrrY

ixoR*^fi!c stL I $ ltiiAcr.rui 3a
OIATOMACFOija:i PLllii lvJJllil {iil
stLtY s0rL5

jiloE6AHtC atqYICsMl
PLtrfl ttTY t-L'tA!1j1 I Y. ttJiltv
uh $lll1 fLA) 9 ll?t\(146

oRGmlc BtLTs Afllr oftodlc liLB
4LAY5 0r LoW ru"lTr9!',1Y

oR6ANtC CLAYs 0r Hiofi pLiSTtSfff

ptAl ANt'' Oriltr\ Hrctit?
oftGMrc 5*t j

!'Jfi[!eyei The ri4IURl CF ]ln fraliS
tlJl;19.$'i I tn:; Nttl a6t;-\ aElqf.ta\N?\:\ tr

19 utsii-1{:rlu 0Y If ru Ltrtiia r, t Q !,
l( /\ i!).\ I UaC Op ,,{{0 t:ttl..;,i.i ltt tl,l,;l

"i.0ffi-
;z,w-"::v:

fl Al f .1i 2A.5 $llrlG 4?.& tffi 1ll;\J it.

nanilp GRAPH
SYMBOLSYMBOL

GW l" d .{*.1' RED

GP tir-1r11,\{l.rl{l RED

GM
L ONT[AT
ilF f iN{i$
ET(E6OS
12$,GC YELLOW

Af I[BBFR& t 

'IIII6ABSVC "A" LINE
P l t,toH[. nJA! 7

SW

,Q
I)c5r

{,

"Q.&
REO

SM

SC YELLOW rit_AYEY $AN0S_.SSC tiiY
IiXTIREi;

ML GREET.,I

Wl'5ll% MH BL I]E

ct GRI'EN

C %f
t./

GRT,HN-
B [|.r:

CH ///. BLUE

OL I

I

uhLtrN

OH BLUE

P.i
FTEeBCU S ',at|{ tJA.t

0rLSA\n

SAtr,nrt Ng rHAI E

5lL?9TtNE t lLt (rfl)i(6f R€NTaTE0'

FUCT,ON

FASSHG R gTANqO tExcrtr

lhm

nil0

5t [!E

isc(
F 1HE

FiNF-S (srlr qn CBY
aASEg 0x
Pl Aa)TlirTYl

1 !{r'

gO!lD(rlli > 2l!'rr/n

Application LA25007 Page 18 of 19



EXPLANATION OF TERMS AND SYNflEOLS

The terms and symbols used on the borehole logs to summarize tho results of fieid investigation and subsequent
laboratory testing 6re described in those pages

It should be noted that materials, boundaries and conditions have been established only at the borehole locations at
lhe time of investigation and are nol necsssarily representative of subsurface conditions elsevrhere across the site

TEST DATA

Data obtained durlng the field investigation and from laboratory testing aro shown at the appropriale depth interval

Abbreviations, graphic symbols, and relevant test method designations are as follows:

"Q Cqnsolidation test

DR Relative density
'k Permeability coefficrent

'MA Mechanical grain size analysis

and hydrometer test

N Standard Penetration Test
(csA A11e.1-60)

Dynam)c cone penetralion test

Non plastic soil

Unconlined compressive strength

Shearbox test

Nr

NP

pp
*q

qU

DD

SOa

Pocket penetrometer strengih (kg/cm:) yd

Triaxial compression test p

Swelling test
Torvane shear strength

Vane shear sireng[h

Natural Moisture Content (ASTM 02216)

Liquid limit (A$TM D 423)

Plastic Limit (ASTM D 4?4)

Unit strain at failure

Unit weight of soil or rook

Dry unlt weight of soil or rock

Density of soil or rock

Dry Density of soil or rock

Undrainod shear strength

Seepage

Observed water level

'57

V5

Er

pd

Concentration of water-$oluble suiphate
v

- The results of these tests are usually reported separalely

Soils are classified and described according to their engineering propedies and behaviour

The soil of eaeh $tratum is described using the Unifled Soil Classification Systemrrnodified slightly so that an
inorganic clay of 'medium plasticity" is recognized.

The rnodifying adjectives used to defino the actual or estimated percentage range by welght of minor components are
consistent with the Canadian Foundatiort Engineering Manual'

Re_ia-tive DensiW and Qoq.s.i_silq n_c_y:

The number of blows by a 63.6k9 hammer dropped 760 mm to drive a 50 mm diameter open sampler attached to 'A"
drill rods for a distance of 300 mm.

t "Unifi"d Soil ClassificEtion SyElem', Technical Menrorandum 36.357 prepared by Walenvays Experjrnent Slalion, Vicksburg,
Mie sissippi, Corpg of Enginecrs, U S. Army. Vol 1 March 1853.

'? "Canadian Foundation Hngineering Manual", 4h F-ditlon, Canadian Geolechnical Society 2006

Relative Density SPT (N) Valua

Very Loose 0-4
Loose 4-10
Compact 10-30
Dense 30-50
Very Dense >50

Cohesiva Soils
Consistency Undrained Shear Approximate

Strength cu (kPa) SPT (N) Value

Very Soft 0-12 0-z
Soft 12-25 24
Firm 25-50 4-8
sriff 50 100 B-15

Very Stiff 100-200 15 30
Hard >200 >30

paso&.Le ilx

Application LA25007 Page 19 of 19



OrnuAN Rwna RsctoNAL Snnwcns Couutsstott

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

November t4,2O24; 6:00 pm
ORRSC Boardroom (3105 - 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge)

The Executive Committee Meeting of the Oldman River Regional Services Commission was held on

Thursday, November 14,2024, at 5:00 pm, in the ORRSCAdministration Building, aswellasvirtuallyvia
Zoom.

Attendance
Executive Committee
Gordon Wolstenholme, Chair
Don Anderberg, Vice Chair, Virtual
Scott Akkermans
David Cody

Brad Schlossberger
Christopher Northcott, Virtual
NeilSieben

Staff
Lenze Kuiper, Chief Administrative Officer
Raeanne Keer, Executive Assistant

Stephanie Sayer, Accounting Clerk

Chairman Wolstenholme called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm

1,. Approval of Agenda

Moved by: Scott Akkermans

THAT the Executive Committee adopts the November'J.4,2024 Executive Committee Meeting

Agenda, as presented.

CARRIED

2. Approval of Minutes

Moved by: Christopher Northcott

THAT the Executive Committee approves the October I0,2024 Executive Committee Meeting

Minutes, as presented.

CARRIED

3. Business Arising from the Minutes

There was no business arising from the minutes.

2024 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 25

November t4,2024



4. OfficialBusiness

a. Chief Administrative Officer Performance Evaluation

Moved by: Don Anderberg

THAT the Executive Committee moves Agenda ltem 4.a - Chief Administrative Officer
Performance Evaluation to Closed Session under the Freedom of lnformotion ond Protection

of Privocy Acf under Section 19: Confidential Evaluations.

CARRIED

b. Board of Directors - Election and Organizational Meeting

R. Keer stated that the Organizational Meeting and Elections will be at the Board of Directors

meeting scheduled for December 5, 2O24. She stated that nomination forms will be

distributed on November L5,2O24 to the Board.

The Committee discussed who would be interested in submitting their names forward for re-

election.

c. Subdivision Activity - As of October 31,2024

L. Kuiper presented Subdivision Activity as of September 30, 2024 to the Committee.

d. Budget

(i) 2025 Operating Budget and 3-Year Rolling Budget

S. Sayer presented the original budget proposed by the Executive Committee following the
October t7,2024 Budget Workshop which used lhe2O24 Total Equalized Assessment (TEA)

values, the proposed budget with the 2O2STEAvalues, and an amended budget which

Administration believes captures the goals set out by the Executive Committee following the
Budget Workship with the intent to keep the fee increase as equitable as possible.

The Committee reviewed additional budget scenarios with various mill rates and fee

ceilings.

Moved by: Don Anderberg

THAT the Executive Committee for the Oldman River Regional Services Commission

recommends the draft 2025 Operating Budget, with the .025 Mill Rate increase, the Floor of
55,000 and the Ceiling increasing 35%to the Board of Directors for approval as presented.

CARRIED

2024 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 26

November 14,2024



(i) 2025-2029 Capital Budget & Plan

R. Keer and S. Sayer presented the 2025-2029 Capital Budget and Plan to the Committee

The Committee discussed reviewing the Capital Plan in greater detail in 2025.

Moved by: NeilSieben

THAT the Executive Committee for the Oldman River Regional Services Commission

recommends the draft 2025-2029 Capital Budget and Plan to the Board of Directors for
approval, as presented.

CARRIED

5 Accounts

a. Office Accounts

L. Kuiper presented the Monthly Office Accounts and the Payments and Credits for
September 2024to the Committee.

Moved by: Scott Akkermans

THAT the Executive Committee approves the Monthly Office Accounts and the Payment and

Credits for September 2024, as presented.

CARRIED

b. FinancialStatements

L. Kuiper presented the Balance Sheets and Comparative lncome Statements for September
2024 and the Details of Account for September 2024 to the Committee.

Moved by: Scott Akkermans

THAT the Executive Committee approves the Balance Sheets and Comparative lncome

Statement for September 2024 and the Details of Account for September 2O24, as

presented.

CARRIED

6. New Business

There was no new business for discussion.

2024 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 27

November 14,2024



7

Moved by: David Cody

THAT the Executive Committee moves into Closed Session to prevent the disclosure of:
- Confidential Evaluations, Section 19 of the Freedom of lnformation and Protection of

Privocy Act.

CARRIED AT 7:30 PM

Closed Session

a. Succession Plan & Organization Summary
Closed Session to prevent the disclosure of confidential evaluations under Section 19 of
the Freedom of lnformation and Protection of Privacy Act.

Pursuant to section 197(6) of the MunicipalGovernmentAct, the following members of
Adminitration were in attendance for Agenda ltem 7.a - Succession Plan & Organizational

Summary: Lenze Kuiper, Chief Administrative Officer, R. Keer, Executive Assistant, and S.

Sayer, Accounting Clerk.

b. Chief Administrative Officer Performance Evaluation
Closed Session to prevent the disclosure of confidential evaluations under Section 19 of
the Freedom ol Information ond Protection of Privocy Act.

Pursuant to section t97(6llof the Municipal Governmenf Act, there were no members of
Adminitration in attendance for Agenda ltem 7.b - Chief Administrative Officer Performance

Evaluation.

Moved by: David Cody

THAT the Executive Committee moves into Open Session

CARRIED AT 8:01 PM

8. CAO's Report

L. Kuiper presented CAO Report to the Committee.

Round Table Discussions

Committee members and staff reported on various projects and activities in their respective

municipalities.

10. Next Meeting - Board of Directors - December 5,2O24;

Executive Committee - December 12,2024
Executive Committee - January 9,2025

9

2024 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 28

November t4,2024



1"1. Adjournment

Following all discussions, Chair Gordon Wolstenholme adjourned the meeting, the time being

8:12 pm

CHAIR

cHt TIVE OFFICER

2024 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 29

November L4,2024


	Agenda
	3.1 2025-01-13 Minutes
	6.1  Draft Bylaw 953-25 Tax Exemptions bylaw
	6.1a Draft Bylaw No. 953-25 Tax exemptions bylaw
	6.2 Municipal Leaders Caucus
	6.2a AB Muni Spring Caucus
	6.2b Draft Agenda for 2025 President's Summit
	6.2c Draft Agenda for 2025 Spring Municipal Leaders' Caucus
	6.3 RFD Centennial Celebration Committee
	6.3a Draft Bylaw No. 954-25 Centennial Celebration Committee
	9.1 2025-01-27 CAO report
	9.1.1 2024 Annual Report
	10.1 HPARC 2024 10 07 Minutes
	10.2 HPARC 2024 12 02 Minutes
	10.3 Beehive Invitation for tour
	10.4 NRCP Manure Storage_Vanden Dool
	LA25007 Deemed letter - agencies 21 Jan 25
	LA25007 complete part 1
	LA25007 Part Two 21 Jan 25
	Blank Page


	11.2 ORRSC Ex com minutes Nov14, 2024



